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CHARACTERISTICS OF THE GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which a higher
investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision to
invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on the GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on the GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on
the GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this report,
make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This annual report, for which the directors of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and its
subsidiaries (the “Group” and the “Directors”, respectively) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief, the information contained in this annual report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make any
statement herein or this annual report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

As the Chairman and on behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board”),
| am pleased to present the audited consolidated result of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2021.

During the year under review, the total revenue of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2021 was approximately RMB705,456,000,
representing an increase of 13% as compared with RMB622,250,000
for the previous year. Profit for the year attributable to owners of the
Company increased to RMB143,283,000 from RMB126,558,000 last
year. For the year ended 31 December 2021, basic earnings per share
increased to RMB25.57 cents from RMB22.59 cents last year.

2021 is still an arduous year for the Company. In recent years, due
to the strengthening of environmental and resource constraints, the
national quality standards and environmental protection standards
for pharmaceuticals have been continuously raised, resulting in rising
production costs for enterprises; after the implementation of the drug
price control policy, the overall price level of pharmaceuticals continued
to decline, resulting in greater operating pressure on pharmaceutical
enterprises; the pandemic situation in many regions of the country
remained severe and complicated, and many of the Company’s major
sales provinces were affected to varying degrees, but we still overcame
many factors and satisfactorily completed the project targets set at
the beginning of the year. The results for the year were the result of
the management’s assessment of the situation and the joint efforts
of all employees. Therefore, the Board is pleased to share with the
shareholders the following competitive advantages of the Company,
which will lead to new achievements for the Company in the coming
years.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

1. With emphasis on sales as always, we persisted in expanding the
market through diverse channels and have established a professional
marketing team that primarily consists of clinical academic members,
supplemented by OTC members, which enabled the steady growth of
sales. We firmly focused on the sales target of the Hai Kun Shen Xi Jiao
Nang (#E B E B ), our dominant product, we strived to ensure no loss
of existing market, continued to strengthen academic promotion, strived
to explore uncharted markets, proactively organized and participated
in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at state level and
gained market share. Meanwhile, we continued to increase the sales of
Compound Huonaoshu capsule (175 /&§%7 B %), our branded product,
and made further efforts in the production and marketing of injecting
drugs, including Edaravone injection (3R Z5)+ 51/K), and blood serum
tablet (IMAK)E F7), which propelled our sales to a new level.

2. We emphasized the research and development of new drugs. We
cooperated with a number of pharmaceutical universities, research
institutes and a number of experts in the field of drug research and
development and scholars and increased investment in developing
technologically advanced new drugs, with independent intellectual
property rights.

3. We have strictly followed the management regulations of the “Drug
Administration Law” and “Good Manufacturing Practice”, strengthened
management of production sites, established a rigorous quality control
system, applied quality concepts to production management, and
enhanced our efforts in quality control throughout the production
process. In connection with Company’s strategic development plan, we
strictly implemented production management, enhanced quality, reduced
costs, increased efficiency, so as to guarantee the supply of goods
against rapid growth in sales.

4. The Company has investigated the market demand in multiple
fields, built new modern production workshops, purchased advanced
production equipment, and resumed production of key varieties to raise
new economic growth points for the enterprise.

5. Focusing on the government’s strategic plan on the development of
healthcare industry and leveraging on the unique geographical resources,
our subsidiaries has carried out healthcare industrial projects to facilitate
sustainable, rapid and healthy development of the Company.

6. The Company will continue to explore and adjust its business
strategy, innovate development model, with the aim of pursuing the
path of sustainable development. We give full play to our technological
advantages, increase investment in technology, and intensify product
research and development, so as to capture the market with our leading
technology and high-end products.
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERBE

The Group acknowledges the importance of environmental, social and
corporate governance as key elements in enhancing shareholders’
value. Thus, it is dedicated to improving its policies in compliance
with the respective regulatory requirements and in accordance with
internationally recommended practices. To achieve this aim, the Group
has continuously reviewed its resources, strengthened internal training
and sought professional advice from experts so as to safeguard interests
of the Group and the Company’s shareholders as a whole.

Looking forward, we will ride on the momentum, overcome difficulties,
seize opportunities, and continue to uphold the business philosophy
of “focusing on technological innovation and serving the public and
endeavoring in the pursuit of health for people around the world”. With
pharmaceutical quality as the focus, market sales as the direction,
scientific and technological innovation as the basis, and academic
promotion as the strategy, we will adapt to the new situation, embrace
new challenges, add new vitality, and make every effort to achieve rapid
growth for “New Changlong” and grow into a centennial enterprise.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to express my heartfelt thanks to all
levels of staff and the management for their efforts and contributions in
2021 and my deep gratitude to our clients, business partners and owners
for their utmost support.

By order of the Board
Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 April 2022
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRR DN

BUSINESS REVIEW

2021 is still an arduous year for the Company. In recent years, due
to the strengthening of environmental and resource constraints, the
national quality standards and environmental protection standards
for pharmaceuticals have been continuously raised, resulting in rising
production costs for enterprises; after the implementation of the drug
price control policy, the overall price level of pharmaceuticals continued
to decline, resulting in greater operating pressure on pharmaceutical
enterprises; the pandemic situation in many regions of the country
remained severe and complicated, and many of the Company’s major
sales provinces were affected to varying degrees, but we still overcame
many factors and satisfactorily completed the project targets set at the
beginning of the year. The results for the year were the result of the
management’s assessment of the situation and the joint efforts of all
employees.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s revenue increased
to RMB705,456,000 from approximately RMB622,250,000 while the
profit for the year attributable to owners of the Company increased
to RMB143,283,000 from RMB126,558,000. For the year ended 31
December 2021, basic earnings per share increased to RMB25.57 cents
from RMB22.59 cents last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the manufacturing and sales of
Hai Kun Shen Xi capsule (/& B B = B %) continued to be the Group’s
core source of revenue.

Investments in wealth management products

During the reporting year, the Group subscribed for and held various
short-term investments, from time to time, in the wealth management
products (the “Wealth Management Products”) issued by Industrial
and Commercial Bank of China, Agricultural Bank of China, China
Construction Bank, Bank of China, Postal Saving Bank of China and
Bank of Jilin. The Wealth Management Products were mainly relatively
lower risk of default. The expected annualised rate of return of the
Wealth Management Products subscribed during the year was around
2.25%-4.13% (2020: 1.58%-3.8%), which was relatively higher than the
comparable market bank deposit interest rates.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEENWR D

As at 31 December 2021, the Company held Wealth Management
Products totalling approximately RMB176,533,000. Information of the
Wealth Management Products held by the Company as at 31 December

2021 is stated as follows:

i

RZBZ—F+_A=+—0 KA7HHE
BfEE S & 4 AR #176,533,0007C ° AN A &
R-B-—F+_A=+—ABEZEBHEDR
ZERNT

Unrealised gains Percentage to
on fair value the Group’s
change for the Fair value total assets
Name of the issuer Expected Initial year ended as at asat
of the wealth management Name of the wealth annualised investments 31 December 31 December 31 December
products (the “Issuers”) management products return rate cost 2021 2021 2021
BE
I S L]
+ZA=1-H RZB=-f
LEE R=B=-% +ZB=t-8H
BHERBTAZ BEEL s 2PAEEE T-A=T-H ZBEE
£B(BIA) BHERZER gk RERE  ZAERUE ZDNE ZEA
(RMB'000) (RMB'000) (RMB'000)
(ARETR)  (AEMTR)  (ARETR)
Agricultural Bank of China “Nong Yin Jin Qu - Ling Dong’ 3.30% 30,000 120 30,120 1.45%
HE B ERT RMB wealth management product
[RBER- BB ARKBHER
Bank of China “Ri Ji Yue Le" BOC accumulated 0.7519% — 10,000 2 10,002 0.48%
HEIERTT wealth management product 2.8085%
tRARAZENER
Bank of China BOC Linked Structured Deposit 3.10% 30,000 130 30,130 1.45%
HEIRTT (Institutional Customer) wealth
management product
RE RITAMORL R TR
(BEEP)BHER
Industrial and Commercial “Ri Sheng Yue Heng” retum 2.10% — 20,000 323 20,323 0.98%
Bank of China ascending corporate RMB wealth 3.30%
R TR management product
[BF A E REEREA
ARBEHER
Industrial and Commercial “ICBC Chao Duanq Faren” 2.60% 30,000 174 30,174 1.46%
Bank of China RMB wealth management product
RETHERT [IRBEHEAAREENER
Postal Saving “Cai Fu Xin Xin Xiang Rong” 1.20% — 55,000 784 55,784 2.69%
Bank of China RMB wealth management 4,00%
FERBHEERT product
[HEEERR ARBENER
Total 175,000 1,633 176,533
43t

As at 31 December 2021, the unrealised gains on fair value change
by the Group from the wealth management products as set out above

amounted to approximately RMB1,533,000.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRR DN

The Issuers are licensed banks in the PRC, which are principally engaged
in the provision of corporate and personal banking and other financial
services in the PRC.

The subscriptions of Wealth Management Products were carried out
by the Group for treasury management purpose in order to maximize
the utilization of its surplus cash received from its business operations,
with a view to achieving balanced yields whilst maintaining high liquidity
and a low level of risks. Taking into account of, among others, the low
level of risks and the expected rates of return, the Group considers that
the subscriptions will provide the Group with better returns than the
returns on deposits generally offered by commercial banks and increase
the Group’s overall earnings in the long run. The Group will monitor
and manage the subscriptions more closely and effectively. As at 31
December 2021, the Group did not experience any losses on the wealth
management products. Further, the subscriptions were funded by the
surplus cash of the Company and are redeemable on demand or highly
liquid, therefore they would not affect the working capital or the operation
of the Group. As such, the Directors are of the view that the subscriptions
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Group and the
Shareholders as a whole. The Group will continue to seek opportunities
in utilising its idle cash by investing in appropriate Wealth Management
Products.

During the reporting year, the number of principal guaranteed Wealth
Management Products in the market has been decreasing and the
expected return on Wealth Management Products has been gradually
decreasing, while the annual return rate on long term time deposits is
increasing and making it closer the return between time deposits and
Wealth Management Products. Based on a prudent investment strategy,
the management has changed the direction of investment and used most
of idle funds to invest in time deposits, making even safer for the Group.

The Group has established a Risk Management Committee to strengthen
the assessment and management of investments in Wealth Management
Products and time deposits, and conducts regular reviews of the Group’s
investment projects to control potential investment risks.

Save as disclosed, there were no other significant investments held
during the period under review.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s investments in the Wealth
Management Products were classified as financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss in its consolidated balance sheet, and amounted
to approximately RMB176,533,000 (2020: RMB60,417,000). For
the year ended 31 December 2021, the gain realised by the Group
from the Wealth Management Products amounted to approximately
RMB1,869,000 (2020: RMB7,721,000). As at 31 December 2021,
the Group’s investment in time deposits, classified as financial assets
measured at amortised cost in its consolidated balance sheet amounted
to approximately RMB806,918,000 (2020: RMB805,020,000).

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENRR DN

OPERATION REVIEW

Good Manufacturing Practice (GMP)
During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company has already
obtained GMP certificates for the following:

1. Powder for Injection (Cephalosporins) — valid until 30 January 2024
2. Lyophilized Powder for Injection — valid until 30 January 2024

3. Small Volume Injection — valid until 30 January 2024

4. API (Edaravone) — valid until 30 January 2024

5.  Tablets, Capsules, Pills (Water Pills), Granules, Solution (External
Use) (Including Chinese Medicine Pretreatment & Extraction) — valid
until 28 August 2022

As at 29 December 2020, Small Volume Injection, Power for Injection
(Cephalosporins), Lyophilized Powder for Injection, Sterile API passed
GMP compliance inspection.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

The Research and Development (R&D) department is essential for the
future success of a pharmaceutical company. In the past, our R&D
department had successfully developed the medicine, Compound
Huonaoshu capsule, which had generated huge profit to the Group and
finally led to the listing of the Company in Hong Kong. In the year of
2003, our R&D department completed the development of Hai Kun Shen
Xi capsule, which has now become the largest contributor of revenue
and its revenue reached our target level.

The Group invested approximately RMB48,466,749 in research and
development projects during the year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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PRODUCTION FACILITIES

During the year, the Company conducted a multi-disciplinary study of
market demand and reconstructed the biochemical extraction workshop
for the resumption of production of key varieties, which is expected to be
put into production in 2022.

This year, the Company built a new R&D and testing center with
complete facilities and advanced testing equipment for new product
development and product quality control, which was officially put into
operation in September 2021.

During the year, the Company completed the production license
additions for Small Volume Injection Workshop I, Small Volume Injection
Workshop lll, Oral Liquid Workshop and API Workshop Il. The Company’s
product catalogue continues to be enriched and the construction of the
workshops and the development of varieties will continue to enhance
the Company’s research and development capability and market
competitiveness.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group’s recorded revenue
amounted to approximately RMB705,456,000 (2020: RMB622,250,000),
representing an increase of approximately 13% as compared with the
figure of the previous year. The audited profit for the year attributable
to owners of the Company was approximately RMB143,283,000,
representing an increase of 13% as compared with RMB126,558,000 of
the previous year. The basic earnings per share amounted to RMB25.57
cents (2020: RMB22.59 cents), representing an increase of RMB2.98
cents over the previous year.

The Board of Directors is pleased with the financial performance in 2021.
It is believed that the maintenance of profitability is attributed to the
following reasons:

1. We placed emphasis on sales and distribution and achieved
breakthrough so as to ensure the rapid growth of sales of our dominant
products and intensity the production and sales of injectable varieties and
invitational varieties, thereby reaching our sales target.

2. We have regarded drug quality as the lifeline, strictly implemented
the Drug Administration Law and the Good Manufacturing Practice,
enhanced job training, and strictly managed production, laying a solid
foundation for the Group’s steady development.

3. We continued to strengthen academic promotion, enhance our
understanding of clinical performance of various medicines and explore
the unique value of our products while proactively organizing and
participating in academic conferences in relation to nephrology at national
level.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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4. We further strengthened our efforts on integrating market resources,
regulated sales practices, strengthened the buildup of sales teams,
adjusted sales strategies, launched various tasks around clinical sales
increment, increased the market share of products, and explored for new
breakthroughs.

5. We have investigated the market demand in multiple fields,
reconstructed the modern production workshops, purchased advanced
production equipment, and resumed production of key varieties to
promote new economic revenue for the enterprise.

6. We enhanced the development of new species, built new R&D
inspection center with complete facilities and advanced inspection
equipment, for new product R&D trials and product quality control to
enhance the Company’s R&D strength.

7. Our subsidiaries have diversified and expanded, stimulated new
economic growth points, opened a new journey of strategic development,
and facilitated the sustainable development of the Group.

The gross profit margin for the year ended 31 December 2021 was
approximately 82.2%, representing a 3% decrease as compared with
that of 85.2% for the year ended 31 December 2020.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded other
income and gains of approximately RMB51,616,000, contrasting to a
figure of RMB48,370,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Distribution and selling costs increased to approximately
RMB360,717,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 from
approximately RMB258,808,000 in last year. These expenses accounted
for 51% of revenue in 2021, which represented a 9% increase from 42%
as compared with the corresponding period of last year.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, administrative expenses
decreased to approximately RMB93,287,000 from approximately
RMB169,546,000 last year.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

The Group has maintained a sound financial position during this year. As
at 31 December 2021, cash and bank balances of the Group amounted
to RMB55,294,000 (2020: RMB26,017,000) with total borrowings
of RMB400,000 (2020: RMB400,000) which were interest bearing at
commercial rates and unsecured. As at 31 December 2021, the Group
had total assets of RMB2,072,313,000 (2020: RMB1,804,503,000)
which were financed by current liabilities of RMB571,794,000 (2020:
RMB415,435,000), other payable of RMB953,000 (2020: Nil), deferred
tax liabilities of RMB3,863,000 (2020: RMB393,000) and shareholders’
equity of RMB1,4583,749,000 (2020: RMB1,345,482,000).
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GEARING RATIO

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a net cash and cash
equivalents of RMB55,294,000. As at 31 December 2021, the ratio
of the total liabilities to the total assets of the Group was 30% (2020:
25%) which was calculated by dividing the Group’s total liabilities of
RMB618,564,000 (2020: RMB459,021,000) by the Group’s total equity
and liabilities of RMB2,072,313,000 (2020: RMB1,804,503,000). The
Group’s gearing ratio which derived from the total borrowings to total net
assets was 0.03% (2020: 0.03%).

EMPLOYEES
The Group has a total of 962 employees.

Remuneration is determined by reference to market conditions and
the performance, qualifications and experience of individual employee.
Discretionary bonuses based on individual performance will be paid to
employees as recognition of and reward for their contribution. Other
benefits include contributions to retirement scheme and medical scheme.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND CORPORATE
RESPONSIBILITY

As a responsible corporation, the Group is committed to maintaining
the highest environmental and social standards to ensure sustainable
development of its business. The Group has complied with all relevant
laws and regulations in relation to its business including health and safety,
workplace conditions, employment and the environment. The Group
understands a better future depends on everyone’s participation and
contribution. It has encouraged employees, customers, suppliers and
other stakeholders to participate in environmental and social activities
which benefit the community as a whole.

The Group maintains strong relationships with its employees, has
enhanced cooperation with its suppliers and has provided high quality
products and services to its customers so as to ensure sustainable
development.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Zhang Hong

Aged 67, male, is the Chairman and secretary of the Party committee.
He holds a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. His previous
positions are as follows: He was a teacher and the secretary of Youth
League Committee of Huinan No. 4 Middle School from September
1978 to October 1983; he worked in county and town governments from
November 1983 to September 1989, during which he held the position of
deputy town head; he has been the Chairman, and secretary of the Party
committee of Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company
Limited since October 1989.

Mr. Zhang Hong is the father of Mr. Zhang Yi, our executive director.

Zhang Xiao Guang

Aged 58, male, is an executive director and general manager. He holds
a bachelor degree and is a senior economist. He held the positions of
the secretary of Youth League Committee of Chaoyang Town Engineer
Affairs Equipment Factory of Shenyang Railway Bureau from July 1983
to September 1989; deputy director of Foreign Trade Bureau of Huinan
County from October 1989 to November 1990; executive director
and deputy general manager of the Company since December 1990;
appointed as general manager since January 2015.

Zhao Bao Gang

Aged 55, male, is an executive director and chief finance officer. He
holds a bachelor degree and is a senior accountant. From August 1990
to May 1995, he acted as director of Finance Bureau of Huinan County;
from June 1995 to February 2007, he held the position of director and
equipment executive director and finance officer of Jilin Province Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and was appointed as
executive director and chief finance officer of the Company since March
2007.

Wu Guo Wen

Aged 57, male, is an executive director and deputy sale director. He
holds a master degree and is a senior engineer. From September 1988
to August 1991, he studied in Shanghai Medicine University; from
February 1993 to May 1996, he pursued master degree in Jilin University;
from June 1996 to August 2007, he acted as chief engineer of Huinan
Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company and was appointed as executive
director and chief engineer on 9 August 2007; appointed as deputy sale
director of part of east China since 2010.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
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Zhang Yi

Aged 41, male, is an executive director and executive general manager,
held a Master’s degree. He attended combined Bachelor’'s and Master’s
degree programs in the clinical department of Jilin University for seven
years from September 2000 to July 2007. He studied in the First Hospital
of Jilin University from 2007 to 2008 and took up IMBA courses in Beijing
Jiaotong University from 2009 to 2011. From 2011 to 2014, he worked as
the General Manager in Changchun Changyuan Pharmaceutical Industry.
He has been working in Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy
Company Limited as executive general manager.

Mr. Zhang Yi is son of Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman and executive
director of the Company.

Xu Xiang Fu

Aged 52, male, is an executive director and the Deputy Technical General
Manager held a tertiary qualification. He graduated from the School of
Medicine in Jilin, specializing in medicine, and is a senior engineer. He
has been working for Changlong Pharmacy since 1992 and is currently
the Deputy Technical General Manager of the Company. In 2015, he
was awarded two patents for inventing the “Methodology for Retrieving
Fucoidan” and “A Methodology for Retrieving Fucoidan”. In 2016, he
participated in the project of development and application in Haikun
Shenxi Capsule and was awarded the second-tier prize in Jilin Province
Science and Technology Award.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Gao Qi Pin

Aged 70, male, is currently the Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral
students in the research and development centre of Changchun University
of Chinese Medicine. He graduated from Shenyang Pharmaceutical
University with a Master’s degree in 1982. He was the Deputy Dean and
researcher of the provincial Academy of Sciences for Chinese Traditional
Medicine from 1982 to 1998, during which he had been working in
Kitasato Institute Hospital in Japan for two years and obtained the Doctoral
degree after working in the University of Tromse in Norway for more than
four years. He was the Head of Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control
and Secretary of party committee from 1998 to 2006. He is now the
Professor and Lecturer for Doctoral students of Changchun College of
Traditional Chinese Medicine, the Officer of Key Laboratory of Chinese
Medicine Macromolecules in Jilin Province and the Officer of Key Research
Centre for Active Components of Chinese Medicines in the Ministry of
Education. He was the committee member of the eighth, ninth and tenth
Chinese Pharmacopoeia Commission; the National New Drug Appraisal
Expert; Science Advancement Award Appraisal Expert from the Ministry
of Science, the Honoured President of provincial medicine society, senior
associate expert from Jilin Province and the winner of special allowance
from the State Council. He was once the person in charge for more
than 20 national, provincial and divisional projects. He was involved in
the research and development for three new medicines (Infantile spleen-
strengthening oral solution (/)\ 72 # f# 0 Ak /%), Colon Recovery Capsule
(#5715 BE B 2), Ginseng Glycopeptide Injection (A 22 #E B 5 8 &), and
initiated around 100 enhancements of standard revision for medicines,
which have been implemented by our provincial enterprises. He possessed
five invention patents. As the first awardee, he won one top-tier provincial
and divisional prize, three second-tier prizes and a number of participant
prizes. He has reached a leading international level with certification
on the research studies of the structural effect and relationship among
ginseng polysaccharide, tremella polysaccharide, polysaccharide and
microsphere connectors. He was ranked the Outstanding Communist
Party model of the Work Committee for Organs Under Direct Supervision
for twice. His study background and working experience are as follows:
educated youth in remote villages (November 1968 to August 1973); the
student of the medicine department of Shenyang Medical College (August
1973 to October 1976); the pharmacist of the Jilin Provincial Institute
(Baicheng District) for Drug Control (October 1976 to October 1980); the
Master’s degree postgraduate of Shenyang Medical College (October
1980 to December 1982); the Research Assistant, Research Associate,
Researcher, Deputy Head, Head, Deputy Dean of School of Research of
Chinese Medicines of the Jilin Province (December 1982 to March 1998),
and among which: the Research Assistant of Kitasato Institute Hospital in
Japan (August 1986 to August 1988); the Doctoral Postgraduate, Senior
Visiting Scholar and Guest Researcher in the University of Tromsg in
Norway (October 1993 to March 1998); the Senior Pharmacist and Head of
Jilin Provincial Institute for Drug Control and Secretary of party committee
(March 1998 to March 2006); the Professor and Officer of the research and
development centre of Changchun University of Chinese Medicine (March
2006 until now).
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Bai Jun Gui

Aged 58, male. In 1999, he took a part-time postgraduate program of
master of business administration (MBA) at Jilin University and graduated
in June 2002 with a master of business administration (MBA).

In 2003, he took a part-time postgraduate program of doctoral degree in
technical economics and management at Jilin University and graduated
with a doctoral degree in management in June 2007.

From 2015 to present, he has been selected into the expert pool of
senior accountant specialised technique post evaluation of Jilin Provincial
Department of Finance. From July 2017 to present, he has been
appointed by the Jilin Provincial Agricultural Comprehensive Development
Office as Jilin Provincial Agricultural Comprehensive Development Expert
and Performance Evaluation Expert. From September 2017 to present,
he has been appointed by the Jilin Provincial Department of Finance as
an Expert Advisor of Training of Academic Accounting Leaders in Jilin
Province. From 2018 to present, he has been employed by Jilin Mingxing
Accounting Service Co., Ltd. (FME #E RIS AR A R)]) as a senior
financial management expert. From June 2020 to present, he has been
appointed by Jilin Provincial Department of Culture and Tourism as a
financial management expert advisor. Since 2010, he has been appointed
by several enterprises as an expert on the Engineering Project Evaluation
— Feasibility Study and an expert advisor on Enterprise Internal Control.

Tian Jie

Aged 50, female, holds a bachelor’s degree. Ms. Tian has been working
at Jilin Huifa Law Firm (5 #h& 18 3 2 R0 S 75 F7) since March 1993 and
has over 20 years of experience in legal matters. She is currently serving
as the director of Jilin Huifa Law Firm.
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SUPERVISORS

Yan Li Yu

Aged 51, male, held a tertiary qualification. He has been working in Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company Limited since
1989 and is now the Superintendent of sales division of Changlong
Pharmacy. He worked in the material division of Changlong Pharmcy
from 1989 to 1994. He worked in the marketing and sales division of
Changlong Pharmcy from 1994 to 1996. He worked in the material
division of Changlong Pharmcy from 1996 to 2007. From 2007 until now,
he has been working in the sales division of Changlong Pharmacy.

Qiao Xiao Chun

Aged 46, female, held a tertiary qualification. She has been working in
Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmancy Company Limited since
1994 and is now the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy workshop
of Changlong Pharmacy. She worked as a supporting staff for Changlong
Pharmcy from July 1994 to January 1997. She was the Sales Manager
stationed in Tianjin for Changlong Pharmacy from 1997 to 2003. She
assumed the position of Superintendent of quality control division of
Changlong Pharmacy from 2003 to 2012. Between 2012 and 2014,
she was the Merchandiser of production supplies division of Changlong
Pharmacy. She was the Deputy Head of production management division
of Changlong Pharmacy from 2014 to 2016. From 2017 until now, she
is the Workshop Officer of the solid pharmacy workshop of Changlong
Pharmacy.

Wang Ying Xu

Aged 38, male, holds an associate degree. He worked in Jilin Huatai
Certified Public Accountants (& #4& =R 2 5TRI EHFT) from September
2006 to December 2006. Since 2007, he has been working in Jilin
Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited and now
serves as officer in finance department of the Company.

OTHER SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mok Sai Cheong Mark

Aged 41, male, is the qualified accountant and company secretary.
He holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting. He is a member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He has over 18 years of
experience in auditing and accounting.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEZEHEE

The Directors present their report and the audited financial statements of
the Company and of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December 1995,
under the relevant provisions of the PRC Company Law, the Company
was re-organised from a state-owned enterprise to a limited liability
company. On 16 August 1996, with the approval of the Economic
Restructuring Commission of Jilin Province, the Company was further
converted into a joint stock limited company. On 20 April 1999, the
Company made a bonus issue from capitalisation of retained profits at
the proportion of one bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May 2001.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and distribution of
Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the PRC under the
brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. There were no changes in
the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the year.

Business review of the Group is set out in the paragraph headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

The Group has only one business segment which is the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in the
PRC. In 2021, revenue of the Group was generated entirely from sales in
the PRC and all identifiable assets of the Group are located in the PRC.
Accordingly, no business or geographical segmental analysis is prepared
for the year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The profit of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and the
state of affairs of the Company and of the Group at that date are set out
in the financial statements on pages 48 to 123.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a final dividend.
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SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

The following is a summary of the published results and the assets and
liabilities of the Group prepared on the basis set out in the notes below.
This summary is not part of the audited financial statements.

PBENBE
UTAXEEEAMPEEURAERBEZH
2 DRI BEERY - AEETE
BEZIBRERZ 85 -

Results E 4
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T AREF T
Revenue WA 705,456 622,250
Profit before income tax R iS50 A A A 177,273 150,041
Income tax expense gz (33,990) (23,483)
Profit for the year from ordinary activities REERQEIIRERSEB AFEL
attributable to owners of the Company ABEBE R 143,283 126,558
Assets and liabilities EEREE
2021 2020
—E-—%F T
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TR ARET T

Total assets EEE 2,072,313 1,804,503
Total liabilities FEN=Fr (618,564) (459,021)
Net assets BEFE 1,453,749 1,345,482

BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS, PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE
ASSETS

Details of movements in bearer biological assets, property, plant and
equipment, and intangible assets of the Group during the year are set out
in Notes 16, 17 and 21 to the financial statements respectively.

TRRENEE W% - BERR
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MATERIAL INVESTMENTS, ACQUISITIONS AND
DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES AND AFFILIATED
COMPANIES

The Group has made acquisitions subsidiaries during the year ended
31 December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the Group had no other
future plans for material investments or significant changes in capital
assets of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 20 to
the financial statements.

BORROWINGS

Particulars of borrowings of the Group are set out in Note 31 to the
financial statements.

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

The operations of the Group were financed mainly by shareholders’
equity. The Group will continue to adopt its treasury policy of placing the
Group’s cash and cash equivalents in interest bearing deposits, and to
fund operations with internal resources.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in share capital of the Company during the year are
set out in Note 34 to the financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company
during the year are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity and in Note 35 to the financial statements respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2021, the reserves of the Company available for
cash distribution or distribution in specie was amounted to approximately
RMB1,318,258,000 (2020: RMB1,212,225,000).

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the Group sold about 8% of its goods to its five largest
customers (2020: 15%) and sales to the largest customer included
therein accounted for 3% (2020: 5%) of the Group’s total sales.

In the year under review, the Group’s purchases from the five largest
suppliers accounted for about 18% (2020: 22%) of the Group’s total
purchases and purchases from the largest suppliers therein accounted
for 5% (2020: 9%) of the Group’s total purchases.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

EXRE WBERHENBARAK
BELR

AEERBE-_ZT-—F+-A=+—ALHF
ERKETHBARREBAR - KT —
FHZA=1+—R  AKEYEEMO KRS
BEMMBAR BB ARIEERRERER
BENENRD -

B /8 2 =]
AR R 2 B 2 B BN B HR SR M 20 ©

B8
REBERZ FHERRAHREM S -

RAEHE
AEEZSBEERRBLN - FEBGEE
ROEMBEE  BAEEY B RESSE
WITE HOA St B 17 330 LA PO BB TR ) B A2 B
BES -

[N
EAN/NT DAV N S AN N
FHIEE34 -

3]
REE RAD ARE P2 EEE BRAE S BIH
RIRA M B BRI BRI S -

HITER MR

] 7 Bkt
RZFZ—F+ZA=+—8  ARAA
BEREHIEXEDOREZHEEHEAR
#1,318,258000 L (ZZE =T F : ARK
1,212,225,0007T) °

FEEFRMER

RAFER  AEERAATFHELN8%(=
TTF 5% )2EMR  ERRARFEARSE
BB EFEI% (B -FE 1 5%) o

REEEER  AEERAEEREARE®ER
HEEO18% (T -T4F : 22%) » Hbh &
A EE LA EEEREE % (T _TF
9%) °



REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEZEHEE

None of the directors of the Company or any shareholders who, to the
best knowledge of the directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital had any beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest
customers and five largest suppliers noted above.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

For the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group mainly
generated revenue and incurred costs in Renminbi. The directors
consider the impact on foreign exchange exposure of the Group is
minimal. Accordingly the Group did not employ any financial instruments
for hedging purposes.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

Details of the capital commitments of the Group as at 31 December 2021
are set out in Note 36 to the financial statements.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

DIRECTORS AND SUPERVISORS

The Directors and Supervisors of the Company during the year and up to
the date of this report were as follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Vi

Mr. Xu Xiang Fu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (Resigned on 5 August 2021)
Ms. Tian Jie
Mr. Gao Qi Pin
Mr. Bai Jun Gui

(Appointed on 23 September 2021)

Supervisors

Mr. Wang Ying Xu
Mr. Yan Li Yu

Ms. Qiao Xiao Chun

DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the Directors of the Company and the senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical Details
of Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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DIRECTORS OF SUBSIDIARIES

Listed below are the names of all the Directors who have served on the
boards of the Group’s subsidiaries during the year and up to the date of
this Report:

Zhang Hong
Zhang Xiao Guang
Zhao Bao Gang
Wu Guo Wen
Zhang Vi

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND
SUPERVISORS AND THE FIVE HIGHEST PAID
INDIVIDUALS

Details of the Directors’ and Supervisors’ emoluments and those of the
five highest paid individuals in the Group are set out in Note 14 to the
financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS OR LETTERS OF APPOINTMENT

Each of the Directors and Supervisors (including the Independent Non-
Executive Directors and the Supervisors) has entered into a service
contract or letter of appointment with the Company for a term of three
years. None of the Directors or the Supervisors had entered into any
service contract or letter of appointment with the Company which is
not terminable by the Company within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS

IN CONTRACTS

No directors had a significant beneficial interest, either directly or
indirectly, in any contract of significance to the business of the Group to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party during the year.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed
any of the Company’s listed securities during the year.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the financial year and up to the date of this directors’
report, there was or is, any permitted indemnity provisions being in
force for the benefit of any of the directors of the Company or any of its
subsidiaries.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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DIRECTORS’ AND SUPERVISORS’ INTERESTS
IN SHARES

At 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (the “SFO”) as recorded in the register required to be kept
under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards of dealing
by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) were as follows:

EEREERRONER

R-ZE-—F+-—A=+—H ARQRAEE
EENEFETBRABRARRR REEEEE
(m%ﬁ;’é%&ﬁﬁfwﬂ(r B MRS RGI])
EXVER) RS - HBERG RESFHERRE
BHENMEE ﬂﬂﬁu%%zﬂ*  JBH ANRZ AR il
paﬂ%}mzm KA - IREB X TGEME S
‘W%EEIJ<FGEML‘W%EHIJJ>%5 46155 .67 IEFT
?E%%EEE—WE MmZBMEARNA 7 MR ET
MR MORE T ¢

Long positions in shares RBROHERE

Percentage of

Type of Number of Percentage of total registered

Director interests Capacity Domestic Shares Domestic Shares Share Capital

1 48 5 AR A

5= RE=ER g4 RERHE HRERB DL HWEZL

Zhang Hong Personal Beneficial owner 101,937,000 26.29 18.19
EEIN &A EnEEA

Zhang Xiao Guang Personal Beneficial owner 42,315,000 10.91 7.55
sREE fEA EnEEA

Xu Xiang Fu Personal Beneficial owner 5,227,000 1.348 0.933
EAEES &A EnaA

Wu Guo Wen Personal Beneficial owner 900,000 0.232 0.161
KRB fEA EnaA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the B FXHBEBEEN  R_T_—F+_A

Directors, supervisors and chief executives of the Company has any
interests and short positions in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to
be kept under section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the minimum standards
of dealing by directors as referred to in Rule 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES

Saved as disclosed under the headings “Directors’ and supervisors’
interests in shares” above, at no time during the year were there any
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or
debentures of the Company granted to any director, supervisor and chief
executive or their respective spouses or children under 18 years of age,
or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the directors, supervisors and chief executives to acquire such
rights in any other body corporate.

INTERESTS DISCLOSEABLE UNDER THE SFO
AND SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2021, the following persons (other than the Directors,
supervisors and chief executives of the Company) had interests and
short positions in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as
recorded in the register required to be kept under Section 336 of the
SFO.

EEBEARDVER

B EXIEEREENBDAER | — BRI E
EI BEFE  BEERTETHARBREES
BHEBE T \RA T FRRERRRITEE
35 B AR 2 RN Sk 55 M XA 2 2 #E
Ao MARE - BERA R SREEM KB QR
BRI R REF  EEREBEITH
AB AR EMZEBAZFER

REEZRPERGATRENE
wmREERR

R-T-—F+-A=+—0  RREATR
155 % TS () 336 1R B 17 1 R R & T
R UTAL(RRAESE - EEREETH
ABBINRAEA RS RAABERGFHEE

Az NN
mMRE ©

Long positions in Domestic shares RRERNER
Percentage of
Capacity/ Number of Percentage of total registered
Name of shareholder Nature of interest Domestic Shares  Domestic Shares Share Capital
IR AR A
REEH B HERME RERHE ERERBSL WEDL
Huinan County SAB (Note) Beneficial owner 81,975,000 21.14 14.63

BESRIKEREREERR(MZE) BRZEEA

Note: Apart from the equity interest in the Company, Huinan County SAB does not have any
direct or indirect interest in the Company, including representatives in the Board of
Directors.

Long positions in H shares

Bret - BRAMEAR A BB AERSN  BRSEERREERE
ERARYEEFARRMEMEZKMEES B
EEEERNRE -

RHEHNRE

Percentage of

Number of Percentage of total registered

Name of shareholder Capacity H Shares H Shares Share Capital

{RAAE MR A

RERERB 514 HER &R EHRBE D WEZE

Chen Jingwei Beneficial owner 29,520,000 1711 5.269
BRRIE EREAA

Shen Qianzhen Beneficial owner 13,996,000 8.11 2.498

LB BEaBEBA
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors, Supervisors and
Chief Executives of the Company) who had interests and short positions
in the shares and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group and the
Company were entered into or were in existence during the year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors, the management shareholders, the significant
shareholders or the substantial shareholders (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company had any interest in a business, which
competes or may compete with the business of the Group.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHT

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the article of
association of the Company or the laws of the PRC, being the jurisdiction
in which the Company was established, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

During the year, the Group had no material related party transactions,
which constituted connected transactions under the GEM Listing Rules.

STAFF RETIREMENT SCHEME

Details of the staff retirement scheme of the Group and the employer’s
staff retirement costs charged to the profit and loss account for the year
are set out in note 15 to the financial statements.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company set up an Audit Committee on 24 May 2001 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the requirements as set out in
Rules 5.28 and 5.29 of the GEM Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and provide supervision over the financial
reporting procedures and internal control system of the Group.

The committee has reviewed with the management the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group and discussed internal
controls and financial reporting matters, including a review of the audited
results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited
financial statements and reclassified as appropriate, is set out on page
124 of the annual report. This summary does not form part of the audited
financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the best of the directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this annual report,
there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the issued shares of the
Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

A report on the principle corporate governance practices adopted by the
Company is set out on pages 29 to 36 of the annual report.

AUDITORS

A resolution will be submitted to Annual General Meeting of the Company
to re-appoint the auditors, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited.

By order of the Board

Zhang Hong
Chairman

Jilin Province, PRC
29 April 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to achieve high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interest of its shareholders and enhance
its corporate value. Throughout the year ended 31 December 2021 and
up to the date of this annual report, the Company has complied with
the Corporate Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM
Listing Rules.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by directors on terms no less than the required standard
of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules.
The Company has also made specific enquiry of all Directors and the
Company was not aware of any non-compliance with the required
standard of dealings and its code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by Directors throughout the year ended 31 December 2021.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND BOARD MEETINGS

The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman)
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang

Mr. Zhao Bao Gang

Mr. Wu Guo Wen

Mr. Zhang Vi

Mr. Xu Xiang Fu

Independent Non-Executive Directors
Mr. Bai Jun Gui

(appointed on 23 September 2021)
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (resigned on 5 August 2021)
Ms. Tian Jie
Mr. Gao Qi Pin

As at the date of this report, the Board comprised nine Directors, six
of whom are Executive Directors, three of whom are INEDs of the
Company. Details of backgrounds and qualifications of each Director
are set out on the section headed “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” of this annual report.
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The Board is responsible for corporate strategy, annual and interim
results, succession planning, risk management, major acquisitions,
disposals and capital transactions, and other significant operational and
financial matters. Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated
by the Board of Directors to the management include the preparation of
annual and interim accounts for Board approval before public reporting,
execution of business strategies, implementation of adequate systems
of internal controls and risk management procedures, and compliance
with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations. Executive
Directors are responsible for running the Group and executing the
strategies adopted by the Board. The INEDs serve the relevant function
of bringing independent judgement on the development, performance
and risk management of the Group through their contributions in board
meeting.

All Directors have been given sufficient time and attention to the affairs of
the Group. Each executive Director has sufficient experience to hold the
position so as to carry out his duties effectively and efficiently.

The Board considers that each INED of the Company is independent in
character and judgement. The Company has received from each INED
a written confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the
GEM Listing Rules.

The Board meets at least four times each year at approximately quarterly
intervals to discuss the Group’s business development, operation and
financial performance. Board papers are circulated not less than 7 days
before the Board meetings to enable the Directors to make informed
decisions on matters to be raised at the board meetings. Minutes of
board meetings are kept be the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice by any Director.

To the best knowledge of the Directors, other than the family relationship
disclosed in the biographical details of directors and senior management
set out on pages 15 to 19 of this annual report, there is no financial,
business and family relationship among the members of the Board.
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Board meetings
During the year, six regular board meetings were held. Details of the
attendance of the Directors are as follows:

Exges
FR ERTANRAFREFSSH - EF2H
JEREBIT

Meetings attended/held

Directors 2= EHE BETEE
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Zhang Hong (Chairman) SROLFEHE(F/E) 6/6
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SREE A 6/6
Mr. Zhao Bao Gang FHE M5 6/6
Mr. Wu Guo Wen REIXSEE 6/6
Mr. Zhang Yi RE LA 6/6
Mr. Xu Xiang Fu RMAKLLE 6/6
Independent Non-Executive Directors B IEITES
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (resigned on 5 August 2021) mKA E(RZE_—F AL HET) 4/6
Ms. Tian Jie Azt 6/6
Mr. Gao Qi Pin SHEmEE 6/6
Mr. Bai Jun Gui (appointed on 23 September HEEXE(WRZZ_—FNHAZ=T=H

2021) BERE) 2/6
Apart from the above regular board meetings of the years, the Board of B Fii&FEEZ FHEEZe@ %I EEgn

Directors will meet on other occasions when a board-level decision on a
particular matter is required. The Directors will receive details of agenda
items for decision and minutes of committee meetings in advance of
each board meeting.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Under the code provision A.2.1, the roles of chairman and chief executive
officer should be separated and should not be performed by the same
individual. Mr. Zhang Hong assumes the role of both the chairman and
the chief executive officer of the Company. The Board is of the view
that this has not compromised accountability and independent decision
making for the following reasons:

- the Audit Committee composes exclusively of Independent Non-
executive Directors;

- the Independent Directors have free and direct access to the
Company’s external auditors and independent professional advice
when considered necessary.
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Mr. Zhang Hong, the chairman, is a substantial shareholder of the
Company and has considerable industry experience. He is motivated to
contribute to the growth and profitability of the Group. The Board is of
the view that it is in the best interests of the Group to have an executive
chairman so that the Board can have the benefit of a chairman who is
knowledgeable about the business of the Group and is most capable to
guide discussions and brief the Board in a timely manner on pertinent
issues and developments to facilitate open dialogue between the Board
and the management.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Company appointed INEDs who have appropriate and sufficient
experience and qualification to carry out their duties so as to protect the
interests of shareholders. Mr. Bai Jun Gui, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian
Jie are the INEDs.

All INEDs are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with
the articles of association of the Company. All the existing INEDs are
appointed for an initial term of three years and the term of office shall
continue after the expiration of the initial term until at least 1 month’s prior
written notice is given by either party or the Company to terminate the
same.

DIRECTORS’ CONTINUING PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT PROGRAMME

Every Director receives comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on
appointment and they are continually updated on developments in the
statutory and regulatory regime, and the business and market changes to
facilitate the discharge of their responsibilities and obligations under the
GEM Listing Rules and relevant statutory requirements.

To ensure that all Directors’ contribution into the Board remain
informed and relevant, they have participated in continuous professional
development for the year ended 31 December 2021 to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skill. During the year under review, the
Company has provided updates and coordinated training on the GEM
Listing Rules and relevant regulatory requirements to the Directors.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

According to the Code, the Company has set up a Remuneration
Committee on 29 September 2005. As at the date of this report, the
chairman of the committee is Mr. Gao Qi Pin, an INED, and other
members include Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Bai Jun Gui and Mr. Zhang Hong. The
remuneration committee schedules meet at least once a year and the
quorum necessary for the transaction of business is two.
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The role and function of the Remuneration Committee included the
determination of the specific remuneration packages of all executive
Directors, including benefits in kind, pension rights and compensation
payments, including any compensation payable for loss or termination
of their office or appointment, and make recommendations to the board
of the remuneration of non-executive Directors. The remuneration
committee should consider factors such as salaries paid by comparable
companies, time commitment and responsibilities of the Directors,
employment conditions elsewhere in the Group and desirability of
performance-based remuneration.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2020, the Remuneration
Committee held two meetings. The individual attendance records of each
member are as follows:

FNEE e AR EREEMANITE
EZREHHES - BREDNE  BRARE R
BEMNR(BREREIR L REFBRUSERT
BN ZEMEE) ARAEETERIERTES
ZHEMEHREZZ FHZEERZEESER
= PINA R AR N FE EEAELZ
RrfE) Je B AL ~ AREREE AL )7 2 B G 1TF K%
I FrE < AT

REEZE-_Z -_TF+_A=+—HILBEF
B FHNEESRITTMAEE SKEZE
R BRI T

Meetings attended/held

Members 54=1 EHE CETEE
Mr. Bai Jun Gui (appointed on 23 September AEEAE(R=ZE-_—FhLA=-+=A8

2021) BZ1E) 1/2
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (resigned on 5 August 2021) BKAEERZZEZ—F ) N\ARHBT) 1/2
Ms. Tian Jie A2+ 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin SHEHMmEE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Hong sRIAFEAE 2/2

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Remuneration Committee
reviewed matters relating to remuneration for the Directors and members
of senior management, and discussed the remuneration policy of the
Group.

The remuneration committee of the Company has considered and
reviewed the existing terms of employment contracts of the Executive
Directors and appointment letters of the INEDs. The Remuneration
Committee of the Company considers that the existing terms of
employment contracts of the Executive Directors and appointment letters
of the INEDs are fair and reasonable.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established the Nomination Committee according to
the relevant provisions of the GEM Listing Rules with written terms of
reference. Its primary responsibilities include reviewing and supervising
the framework, number of members and composition of the Board and
making proposals to the Board in respect of any changes and identifying
and nominating suitable persons for appointment of Director.

As at the date of this report, the Nomination Committee comprises of
one Executive Director, Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang and three INEDs, Mr. Bai
Jun Gui, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie, Mr. Gao Qi Pin is the chairman
of the Nomination Committee.
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Nomination procedures include identification and acknowledgement
of qualified individuals by the Nomination Committee, and review and
approval of such nominations by the Board. The Nomination Committee
will evaluate potential candidates considering factors such as professional
expertise, relevant experience, personal ethics and integrity.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2021, the Nomination
Committee held two meetings. During the meeting, the Nomination
Committee has reviewed and discussed the framework, number of

REEFEEHREZESRMLAAS

AL YHEFSESZLUE - ?m%é 3
FHEBEEEA - EEFEERE  HEK

BABTEHESREE -

BE_Z_ -+ _A=+—HALMBFE "
REZEBERTTMASR - §LIRAZES
ERLIwTEFTSRE KEABRAEX -

members and composition of the Board. Also, the Nomination Committee 12 EZZEZE @ Mot AITEE LB IEHITE S 2
has identified and made proposals in respect of the outstanding — Z=Ht A\BIEL B RiE - SR E 2 @RI E
appointment of Executive Directors and INEDs. The individual attendance — s2&k#A | -
records of each member are as follows:
Meetings attended/held

Members BE EHE BETEE
Mr. Bai Jun Gui (appointed on 23 September HEEE4E (R _—FhLH=-+T=A8

2021) BERE) 1/2
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (resigned on 5 August 2021) SR EERZE_—FN\ARBET) 1/2
Ms. Tian Jie A#LZ+ 2/2
Mr. Gao Qi Pin SHEmMEE 2/2
Mr. Zhang Xiao Guang SRS A 2/2

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in 2001 and currently comprises
three members, Mr. Bai Jun Gui, Mr. Gao Qi Pin and Ms. Tian Jie. All of
them are INEDs. The chairman of the Audit Committee is Mr. Gao Qi Pin.
The Board considers that each Audit Committee has broad commercial
experience and there is a suitable mix of expertise in business, legal,
accounting and financial management in the Audit Committee.

None of the members of the Audit Committee has any personal financial
interests, conflicts of interests arising from cross-directorships or day-
to-day involvement in the running of the business. During the year, the
Audit Committee carried out their own independent review of the interim
and annual financial statements and financial reports and statements
included in circulars of the Company published during the year. The Audit
Committee completed its review of the adequacy and effectiveness of
the Company’s systems of internal control and reported its findings and
recommendations to the Board.
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The Audit Committee held four meetings during the year under review.
Details of the attendance of the audit committee meetings are as follows:

ERZEBEROBFEARBTOREGH - &
BREEERILEFBET

Meetings attended/held

Members RE BHE CBETEE
Mr. Bai Jun Gui (appointed on 23 September HEEE4E (R -_—FhLH=-+T=A8

2021) EEE) 2/4
Mr. Gao Yong Cai (resigned on 5 August 2021) SR EERZZE_—F N\ARBFT) 2/4
Ms. Tian Jie A&+ 4/4
Mr. Gao Qi Pin =EmEE 4/4

The Group’s unaudited quarterly and interim results and annual audited
results during the year ended 31 December 2021 have been reviewed
by the Audit Committee, which was of the opinion that the preparation
of such results were complied with the applicable accounting standards
and requirements and that adequate disclosure have been made.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited was the auditor of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. Other than annual
auditing services, Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited did not
provide non-auditing services to the Company or any of the Group’s
companies during the year.

Auditor’s remuneration for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out
in Note 9 to the financial statements.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors have the responsibilities for the preparation of the financial
statements of the Group and shall ensure that the financial statements
are in accordance with statutory requirements and applicable accounting
standards. The Directors also ensure the timely publication of the financial
statements of the Group.

The statements of the external auditors of the Company, Reanda Lau &
Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited, about its reporting responsibilities on the
financial statements of the Group is set out in the Independent Auditor’s
Report on pages 39 to 47 of this annual report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

In 2021, the Company Secretary took the relevant professional training of
15 hours relating to general corporate governance issues.
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INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for ensuring that the Group has a sound
and effective internal control system. The Group is committed to the
identification, monitoring and management of risks associated with its
business activities and has implemented a practical and effective control
system which includes a defined management structure with limits of
authority, a sound cash management system and periodic review of
the Group’s operation and performance by the Audit Committee and
the Board. The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis
by the Board to ensure it is effective. The Board is satisfied that, based
on information furnished to it and on its own observations, the present
internal controls of the Group are satisfactory. The Board has conducted
review of the effectiveness of the system of internal control and is of the
view that the system of internal control adopted for the year is sound and
effective. The Group does not maintain its own internal audit team for
cost-saving reason but the work is shared between related parties in the
Company to assist the Audit Committee to review the effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control system.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company disclosed all necessary information to the shareholders
in compliance with GEM Listing Rules. Extensive information about the
Company’s activities is provided in the Annual Report and the Interim
Report which are sent to shareholders. There is regular dialogue with
institutional investors. Enquiries from individuals on matters relating to
their shareholdings and the business of the Company are welcomed and
are dealt with in an informative and timely manner.

All shareholders have 45 days’ notice of the Annual General Meeting at
which all directors and Committee chairs are available for questions. All
shareholders are encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting.

LOOKING FORWARD

The Group will keep on reviewing its corporate governance standards
on a timely basis and the Board endeavors to take necessary actions
to ensure compliance with the required practices and standards
including the provisions of the Code on Corporate Governance Practices
introduced by the Stock Exchange.
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REPORT OF THE SUPERVISORY COMMITTEE

Exefiss

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, in accordance with the
Company Law of the PRC, the requirements of the relevant laws and
regulations of Hong Kong and the articles of association of the Company
(the “relevant rules and regulations”), the Supervisory Committee of
the Company exercised conscientiously its authority, safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company and the Company, and
followed the principle of honesty and integrity and worked cautiously and
diligently.

During the year, we provided reasonable suggestions and advice on
the operations and development plans to the Directors and strictly
and effectively monitored whether the policies of the Company had
conformed with the relevant rules and regulations or safeguarded the
interests of the shareholders of the Company.

After investigation, we consider that the audited financial statements of
the Company give a true and fair picture of the operating results and
asset position of the Company. We also consider that the Report of the
Directors and the profit distribution proposal meet the relevant rules and
regulations. We have attended the meeting of the Board. We are of the
opinion that the meeting was convened in accordance with the relevant
rules and regulations. We consider that the members of the Board,
the general manager and other senior management of the Company
have strictly complied with the principle of honesty and trustworthiness,
worked diligently and sincerely exercised their authority to the best
interests of the Company. None of the Directors, general manager nor
other senior management of the Company have abused their powers,
caused damage to the interests of the Company and infringed upon
the interests of the Company shareholders and its staff, nor have they
violated the relevant rules and regulations.

We are satisfied with the various accomplishments and the cost-
effectiveness of the Company. We are confident that the Company will
have a good prospect of future development.

By order of the Supervisory Committee

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

Qiao Xiao Chun

Jilin Province, PRC
29 April 2022
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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The Group is committed to contributing to the sustainability of the
environment and has implemented policies to minimise the impact on
the environment from its business activities. The Group endeavors to
refine the approach to addressing its environmental, social and ethical
responsibilities along with improving its corporate governance in order to
generate greater value for all stakeholders.

The “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the Company to
be prepared in accordance with Appendix 20 of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited will be published within five months after the financial year end.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

" REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNEE(FB)EEHENSESHABRAE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE
MEMBERS OF JILIN PROVINCE HUINAN
CHANGLONG BIO-PHARMACY COMPANY
LIMITED

(a joint stock limited company incorporated in the People’s Republic of
China with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Jilin Province
Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited (“the Company”)
and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 48 to 123, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2021,
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2021, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

21/F, Tai Yau Building, EBET
181 Johnston Road, HA-2E 18155
Wanchai, Hong Kong RERE211E
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
BYZHERES

" REANDA

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited

NRZZNEE(FB)EEHENSESHABRAE

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing (“HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA'’s
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,
and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate
opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters identified in our audit are summarised as follows:

° Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets, advances to
staff and other receivables
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NRZZNEE(FB)EEHENSESHABRAE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets,
advances to staff and other receivables

We refer to Note 3, Note 25 and Note 26 to the consolidated financial
statements for the related disclosures. As at 31 December 2021, gross
trade receivables and contract assets, advances to staff and other
receivables of the Group amounted to RMB390 million, RMB21 million
and RMB155 million respectively, which accounted for approximately
19%, 1% and 7% of the Group’s total assets respectively. The allowance
for expected credit losses of trade receivables and contract assets,
advances to staff and other receivables amounted to RMB138 million,
RMB14 million and RMB58 million respectively, all of which was
attributable to customers and staff members located in China.

Management judgement is required in assessing and determining the
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets, advances to
staff and other receivables and adequacy of allowance made using
the expected credit losses (“ECL”) model under HKFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments”. These judgement includes estimating and evaluating
expected future receipts from the receivables based on historical
experience, ageing analysis, subsequent settlement status, past
collection history, current economic conditions and forward looking
information.

We focused on this area due to the magnitude of the receivables and
the estimation and judgement involved in the determination of the
recoverable amounts of trade receivables and contract assets, advances
to staff and other receivables.
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NRZZNEE(FB)EEHENSESHABRAE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter

Our audit procedures in relation to the management’s assessment on
recoverability of trade receivables and contract assets, advances to staff
and other receivables included:

— Understood the credit control procedures performed by the
management, including its procedures on periodic review on aged
receivables and assessment on recoverability of these receivables;

= Evaluating the management’s impairment assessment of
receivables;

— Assessing the reasonableness of management’s loss allowance
estimates by examining the information used by management
to form such judgements, including testing the accuracy of the
historical default data, evaluating whether the historical loss rates
are appropriately adjusted based on current economic conditions
and forward-looking information;

— Tested on a sample basis, the accuracy of ageing profile on
receivables by checking to the underlying source documents; and

= Tested subsequent settlement of receivables balances. Where
settlement had not been received subsequent to the year end for
those unprovided aged receivables beyond the credit period as
at year end, we obtained the management’s assessment on the
recoverability of these debts and corroborated explanations with
historical settlement pattern and underlying correspondence with
the relevant customers.

Based upon the above, we are satisifed that the estimation and
judgement made by the management in respect of the collectability of
receivables were supportable by the available evidence.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not and will not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance is responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion solely to you,
as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always
detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to
cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS (continued)

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit
of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent

auditor’s report is Yu Kwong Man.

Reanda Lau & Au Yeung (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Yu Kwong Man
Director
Practising Certificate number P04645

Hong Kong, 29 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
RERBEREMEEKER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—E-—F 1+ -_HA=1—HIFE

48

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaE ARMT T ARETTT

Revenue WA 4 705,456 622,250
Cost of sales SHEE AR (125,451) 91,512)
Gross profit E75 580,005 530,738
Other income H A 6 50,083 47,953
Other gains H Az 7 1,533 417
Distribution and selling costs D RHE R (360,717) (258,808)
Administrative expenses THAX (93,287) (169,546)
Profit from operations B i A 177,617 150,754
Finance costs BB RS 8 (344) (713)
Profit before income tax R PS5 A& A 9 177,273 150,041
Income tax expense i3 fisz 10(a) (83,990) (23,483)
Profit for the year REE @A 143,283 126,558
Other comprehensive income H A2 E s - -
Total comprehensive income for the year ANEEZHEWHAEE 143,283 126,558
Profit attributable to: AT LR
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZEPN 143,283 126,558
Total comprehensive income DU FEfh 2 E e

attributable to: 4%
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZEPN 143,283 126,558
Earnings per share BRAET

— Basic (RMB cents) —HER(ARES) 11 25.57 22.59

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

MeEEEAER
As at 31 December 2021
R-F——F1+ZA=1—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZT)
2021 2020
—E-—F —ET-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
HiaF ARET T ARETTT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Bearer biological assets TR EMEE 16 15,080 14,905
Property, plant and equipment Y% - B NEAE 17 198,594 169,969
Right-of-use assets FHEEE 18 36,619 37,408
Construction in progress EREITRE 19 147,857 124,305
Intangible assets M A E 21 32 -
Goodwill EES 22 6,254 =
Financial assets measured at AR SHAK AT E R
amortised cost SREE 28 776,494 648,519
Deferred tax assets FEEFITBE = 33 1,510 1,510
1,182,440 996,616
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 23 86,313 55,000
Trade receivables FEUE Z 8RR 25(a) 230,252 206,374
Contract assets BHEE 25(b) 21,790 45,755
Other receivables, deposits EAbEUGRIA « Fle &
and prepayments TEf 3R 26 289,267 257,823
Financial assets at fair value through BAR(ER AEZE
profit or loss TRBE 24 176,533 60,417
Financial assets measured at LABESHRR ZRRTE R
amortised cost CRBE 28 30,424 156,501
Cash and cash equivalents BHe MBS EEY 27 55,294 26,017
889,873 807,887
Current liabilities REBEME
Trade payables FERTE S8R 29 51,335 42,628
Contract liabilities BRAE 15,222 7,564
Other payables and accruals HE b IE R ERT & A 30 404,889 287,842
Deferred income PEIEUT A 32 1,583 989
Income tax payable FERTFR1S R 32,446 26,642
Other tax payables E A e IR 33,783 25,892
Loan from government authority BN E R 31 400 400
Dividend payable FERTAR B 32,136 23,478
571,794 415,435
Net current assets RBEEFE 318,079 392,452
Total assets less current liabilities BWEERRBEE 1,500,519 1,389,068
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

REEEREX

As at 31 December 2021
—E-——F1+ZHA=1+—H
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARKEZT)
2021 2020
:g: - ¢ —=F= EF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iobz3 AR®F T AREFIT
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Other payable H e FRIE 953 =
Deferred income PRIEWA 32 41,954 43,193
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIBEE &3 3,863 393
46,770 43,586
Net assets EEZFE 1,453,749 1,345,482
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS ARAT B AES
OF THE COMPANY =
Share capital &N 34 56,025 56,025
Reserves ] 1,397,724 1,289,457
Total equity R 1,453,749 1,345,482

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated
financial statements.

BER 2 P A AR & B TS AR B 2 — & -

These consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised (2438 BHER S -_—FWA -+
for issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2022. EEEe U R -

ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
5&5A iizh i
Director Director
BEFE EF
50 Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

RERBEHR

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE—E-—F 1+ -_HA=1—HIFE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBEZT)
Statutory
Share Share surplus Retained
capital premium reserve profits Total
R RIDEE ZERHREE RERF @t
RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETE ARETT ARETT ARETR
(Note 34)  (Note 35(b)(i))  (Note 35(b)(ii))
(Hiits4)  (Hitsap)))  (Hiztsem)i)
Balance at 1 January 2020 RZT-TE—-F—R2kH 56,025 51,008 33,242 1,098,168 1,238,533
Comprehensive income ZHKER
Profit for the year KEEHEA - - - 126,558 126,558
Other comprehensive income Hit2EKE - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FEMGRE 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,224,726 1,365,001
Transactions with owners BERRZR S
Dividends paid (Note 13) INRE(HEE13) - - - (19,609) (19,609)
At 31 December 2020 RZZEZZF+_A=T—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,205,117 1,345,482
Balance at 1 January 2021 R-BE-_—E—F—H7&H 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,205,117 1,345,482
Comprehensive income ZHKER
Profit for the year KEERF - - - 143,283 143,283
Other comprehensive income Hit2Ekz= - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FEMGEE 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,384,400 1,488,765
Transactions with owners BRRZR S
Dividends paid (Note 13) SNRE(HEE13) - - - (35,016) (35,016)
At 31 December 2021 R-BE-_—F+-f=1+—H 56,025 51,098 33,242 1,313,384 1,453,749

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE_—FF+_A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

52

(UAREZT)
2021 2020
—B=-F —T-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR®TR ARETT
Cash from operating activities RETHEEZRS
Profit before income tax BRPTE BT RA] 177,273 160,041
Adjustments for: HEIER
Interest income FLBUA 6 (7,141) (7,717)
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BARER A ERK
through profit or loss SREERGNER 6 (1,869) (7,721)
Gross interest income from financial assets DB SER A FTEM S REE
measured at amortised cost MFI S Yrzs4asE 6 (26,444) (20,468)
(Reversal of)/loss allowance of trade receivables W E SR K
and contract assets BHEE (BiEEE
EI#),/ EEEE 9 (1,521) 69,809
Provision for/(reversal of) obsolete and slow-moving B Rk st S#lE
inventories (E14%) 9 735 (974)
Interest expenses FEZH 8 344 713
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment WE - BENRETE 9 28,089 21,230
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEERE 9 789 932
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BARER A ERH
through profit or loss SREEN T 7 (1,533) (417)
Loss allowance on other receivables H fEUGRIE 2 B 9 38,540 23,844
Government subsidies B AL 6 (564) (76)
Recognition of deferred income HERIETE A 6 (1,240) (1,389)
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment ~ HEWE « BE RREEE 9 8 1,059
Operating cash flows before working HEES BB 2 LS
capital changes Reng 205,466 228,866
Increase in inventories FEEM (13,936) (3,881)
(Increase)/decrease in trade receivables PN E ZERFR (18 00),m (23,281) 14,092
Decrease/(increase) in contract assets BWBERL /(M) 37,843 (40,942)
Increase in other receivables, deposits HpEUGIE « fl e Rk
and prepayments FERFRIEIE (69,596) (48,396)
Increase in trade payables BB ZERFUE M 5,195 8,075
Increase in other payables and accruals Hofth T RIE K FE 5T & A3 AN 82,910 17,791
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities AtaEENn/ (Bd) 7,658 (1,338)
Increase in other tax payables HAb I TR N 7,891 3,376
Cash generated from operations REXBEL R 240,510 177,643
Cash flows from operating activities RETHEEZHERE
Cash generated from operations REEBEE RS 240,510 177,643
Income tax paid BFFTEH (24,716) (25,708)
Interest paid BRFE (344) (713)
Net cash generated from operating activities RETHELECHETHE 215,090 151,207
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
REBRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2021
BE_FE_—FF+_A=1+—HIFFE
(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
2021 2020
—B=-F —T-FF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Kz AR®TR ARETT
Cash flows from investing activities REXBELEZHERE
Purchase of bearer biological assets BETCRENEE (175) (1,508)
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEWE  BEKRE (68,869) (38,248)
Purchase of construction in progress EEEETRE (28,791) (59,012)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and HENE - BE R EASHE
equipment 12,450 -
Net cash inflow from acquisition of subsidiaries WERBARNR SR AFE 798 =
Purchase of financial assets at fair value BERAAAEF B
through profit or loss SREE (240,000) (390,000)
Proceeds from settlement of financial assets ERNRARBEABEDN
at fair value through profit or loss SREEMBA 125,417 1,013,483
Interest received BIFHIE 7,141 7,711
Yield gains on financial assets at fair value BRANEFABER
through profit or loss SREER R 1,869 7,721
Decrease/(increase) in financial assets measured A SER AT EN SR EE
at amortised cost D/ (12hn) 24,546 (785,000)
Net cash used in investing activities REERFAZESFE (160,614) (244,848)
Cash flows from financing activities MEXBELECHERE
Proceeds from government subsidies KIS et F{S5IE 1,159 76
Repayment of loan from government authority EEBNEEER 42 - (1,950)
Dividend paid BERERE 42 (26,358) (15,877)
Net cash used in financing activities BMEERMAZRSTEE (25,199) (17,751)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash BeRBLZEYEM/ (RD)
equivalents k) 29,277 (111,372)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year ~EHBRERELZEY 26,017 137,389
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year FRESRRSEEY 55,294 26,017
Analysis of the balance of cash and BEeRBEEENERA T
cash equivalents
Cash and bank balances & RIRITH 27 55,294 26,017

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B&[ff 2 Mt :T B AR A B FE R EEEE 7 — 5 o
financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

54

GENERAL INFORMATION

The Company was established as a state-owned enterprise in the
People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) in 1989. On 29 December
1995, under the relevant provisions of the Company Law of
the PRC, the Company was re-organised from a state-owned
enterprise to a limited liability company. On 16 August 1996, with
the approval of the Economic Restructuring Commission of Jilin
Province, the Company was further converted into a joint stock
limited company. On 20 April 1999, the Company made a bonus
issue from capitalisation of retained profits in the proportion of one
bonus share for every two existing shares.

The Company’s H shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 24 May
2001.

The Company is principally engaged in the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC under the brand names of Changlong and Qing Tong. The
principal activities of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 20.

The legal address and the principal place of business of the
Company are disclosed in the corporate information section to the
annual report.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

(@) Statement of compliance

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) which collective term includes all applicable
individual Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, Hong
Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and Interpretation
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (“HKICPA”), accounting principles generally
accepted in Hong Kong, applicable disclosure provisions of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “GEM Listing
Rules”) and the applicable requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(b)

(©)

Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention, as modified by certain
biological assets and financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss which are measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires the management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 3.

Change in accounting policy and disclosures

In the current year, the Group has applied, for the first time,
the following new and revised standards, amendments and
interpretations (collectively referred to as the “new and revised
HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, which are effective for the Group’s
financial year beginning from 1 January 2021. A summary of
the new and revised HKFRS applied by the Group is set out as
follows:

Amendments to HKAS 39, Interest Rate Benchmark Reform - Phase 2
HKFRS 4, HKFRS 7,
HKFRS 9 and HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions

The adoption of amendments and interpretations to
standards does not have any significant impact to the results
and financial position of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEFBERME(E)
POLICIES (continued)

(d) New standards, amendments and interpretation d EEGEMRR=-ZT=—%F—
of HKFRSs issued but are not effective for the B—HHMBRZUHBRFEEREK
financial year beginning on 1 January 2021 and AEEWERE RRMZ AT E
have not been early adopted by the Group Al - RETEBMBREER

kZRE
The Group has not early applied the following new and AEEWEREHEAATEEME
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not AR AE N 2 H5] MEEIEE] BB TS
yet effective: FRAER| -
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment; Proceeds before Er e ERE16%  WE  BERRE: BT
intended use' (fB3IA) Rig A2 frssE!
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts - Cost of Fulfiling a Contract' EEQERFE7E  BHREAN-BARA
(B3T%)
AG 5 (Revised) Merger Accounting for Common Control @xHen| EaiE(18:]) LREHEGHNAHE:
Combinations' RE
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual Framework' EH R AR 3| AR
FINR(EITA)
Annual improvements project  Annual Improvements to HKFRS Standards FEMEE BB BREER
2018-2020' 2 )\&%
CEITEVERE
i
Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilties as Current and Non-current? EReTENER BRRIEARDH
(fBEIAR) g
Amendments to HKAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies? BEQIIENER  RBRNER
and HKFRS Practice (BETA)RER
Statement 2 B REEAER
NEFER
Amendments to HKAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilties arising EEOENS12% ERE-QHNBER
from a Single Transaction? ({B3TK) B ML R
Amendments to HKFRS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates? EREREES S RER?
FOR(EFIA)
HKFRS 17 and Amendments  Insurance Contracts? BB RS LR REA 4P
to HKFRS 17 ENTRREERG
BERBEITH
(B3T%)
HK Int 5 (2020) Presentation of Financial Statements - Classification ERARESR BBRENZT—EFA
by the Borrower of a Term Loan that Contains a (ZZ-Z%) HEERERER
Repayment on Demand Clause? BB E R
niE
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor BRUBAEREN  REZEHBERAE
and HKAS 28 and its Associate or Joint Venture? F0RRERET  CECRANEELE
KR F285% A
(B3TA)
1 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022. { R-T-_—F—A—Bx &Rz
FEHREM -
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023. 2 RZT-=F—A B Z&FARZ
EEHARAERR -
8 Effective date to be determined. E ERAREFERE °
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(d) New standards, amendments and interpretation

of HKFRSs issued but are not effective for the
financial year beginning on 1 January 2021
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(continued)
The directors of the Company anticipate that the application
of all the new and amendments to HKFRSs above will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial statements
in the foreseeable future.

(e) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured entity) over
which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity
when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable
returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

()  Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method to account
for business combinations. The consideration
transferred for the acquisition of a subsidiary is the fair
values of the assets transferred, the liabilities incurred
to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any asset or liability
resulting from a contingent consideration arrangement.
Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition
date. The Group recognises any non-controlling interest
in the acquiree on an acquisition-by-acquisition basis,
either at fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount
of any non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the
acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity interest
in the acquiree over the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured
is less than the fair value of the net assets of the
subsidiary acquired in the case of a bargain purchase,
the difference is recognised directly in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(e) Consolidation (continued)

(i)

Business combination (continued)

If the business combination is achieved in stages,
the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
re-measured to fair value at the acquisition date; any
gains or losses arising from such re-measurement are
recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
Group is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date.
Subsequent changes to the fair value of the contingent
consideration that is deemed to be an asset or liability is
recognised in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit
or loss or as a change to other comprehensive income.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity
is not remeasured, and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries
without change of control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not
result in loss of control are accounted for as equity
transactions — that is, as transactions with the owners
of the subsidiary in their capacity as owners. The
difference between fair value of any consideration paid
and the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of
net assets of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains
or losses on disposals to non-controlling interests are
also recorded in equity.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(e) Consolidation (continued)

(il

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained
interest in the entity is re-measured to its fair value
at the date when control is lost, with the change in
carrying amount recognised in profit or loss. The fair
value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained interest
as an associate, joint venture or financial asset. In
addition, any amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income in respect of that entity are
accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed
of the related assets or liabilities. This may mean that
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income are reclassified to profit or loss.

Separate financial statements

Investment in subsidiaries are included in the
Company’s balance sheet at cost less impairment. The
results of subsidiaries are accounted for the Company
on the basis of dividends received and receivables.

Impairment testing of the investment in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving dividends from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(f)

(9)

Biological assets

Biological assets are living animals and plants managed by
the Group which is involved in the agricultural activities of the
transformation of biological assets for sale or into agricultural
product.

Biological assets are measured at fair value less estimated
point-of-sale costs at initial recognition and at each balance
sheet date. The fair value of these biological assets is
determined based on active market prices in the local market
with reference to comparable age, breed and genetic merit.
The gain or loss arising on initial recognition and subsequent
changes in fair values less estimated point-of-sale costs of
biological assets is recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which it arise. Biological assets that are in the stage of
cultivation or do not have a quoted market price in an active
market and whose fair value cannot be reliably measured are
recognised in the balance sheet at cost less any impairment
losses.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment is stated at historical
cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly
attributable to the acquisition of the items. Subsequent costs
are included in the assets carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable
that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income during the financial period in which
they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their costs or revalued amounts to their residual value
over their estimated useful lives. The assets’ residual values
and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
the end of each reporting period. The principal annual rates
are as follows:

Buildings 10 to 30 years
Plant and machinery 6 years
Transportation equipment 8 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 years

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(9)

(h)

(i

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater
than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains or losses on the disposal are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

Transfer from property, plant and equipment to
investment property carried at cost

The Group transfers a property from property, plant and
equipment to investment property when there is a change
of use to hold the property to earn rentals or/and for capital
appreciation rather than for its own use in the ordinary course
of business.

Investment property
Investment property is property held to earn rentals and/or for
capital appreciation.

Investment property is initially measured at cost, including
any directly attributable expenditure. Subsequent to initial
recognition, investment property is stated at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses. Depreciation is recognised so as to write
off the cost of investment properties over their estimated
useful lives using the straight-line method.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn
from use and no future economic benefits are expected from
its disposals. Any gain or loss arising on derecognition of
the property (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset)
is included in the profit or loss in the period in which the
property is derecognised.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

() Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for

consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets

representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@ Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date
the underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost
of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease
liabilities recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and
lease payments made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received. Right-of-
use assets are depreciated over the lease term of the

leasehold land.

(b) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets
The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease term
of 12 months or less from the commencement date
and do not contain a purchase option). Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over

the lease term.

(k) Construction in progress

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and
equipment under construction and pending installation, and
is stated at historical cost less any impairment losses. No
depreciation is made on construction in progress until such
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time as the relevant property, plants and equipment are
available for use. Cost comprises all construction expenditure
and other direct costs of construction. Construction in
progress is transferred to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when the asset being
constructed becomes available to use.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
() Intangible assets

(i)

(i

(il

Purchased know-how and prescription

Purchased know-how and prescription are stated
at historical cost less accumulated amortisation and
impairment losses. Amortisation is charged on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives,
which range from 5 to 12 years from the date of
commercial production. The estimated useful life and
amortisation method are reviewed at the end of each
balance sheet date, with the effect of any changes in
estimate being accounted for on a prospective basis.

Research and development expenditure
Expenditure on research activities is recognised as an
expense in the financial period in which it is incurred.
Expenditure on development activities is capitalised if
the product or process is technically and commercially
feasible and the Group has sufficient resources and the
intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour,
and appropriate proportion of overheads and borrowing
costs, where applicable. Capitalised development
costs are stated at historical cost less accumulated
amortisation and impairment losses. Amortisation
begins when development is completed and the assets
is available for use. Other development expenditure
is recognised as an expense in the financial period in
which it is incurred.

Purchased in-process research and development
assets acquired through separate purchase
In-process research and development assets acquired
through separate purchase are recognised as intangible
assets at historical cost less accumulated amortisation
and impairment losses.

Amortisation and impairment assessment are
accounted for in a similar manner as internal
development expenditure set out in (i) above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(m)

(n)

(0)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life — for example,
goodwill or intangible assets not ready to use — are
not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its
recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher
of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For
the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at
the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash flows (cash-generating units). Non-financial assets other
than goodwill that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average cost
formula. The cost of finished goods and work in progress
comprises raw materials, direct labour, other direct costs and
related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is
the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less applicable variable selling expenses.

Financial assets

(@) Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
measurement categories:

- those to be measured subsequently at fair value

(either through other comprehensive income
(“OCI”) or through profit or loss), and

- those to be measured at amortised cost.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited

ANNUAL REPORT 2021

2. EXREHHEBEE)
(m) FEBMEERE

BREERATAFHBE)REA
ARZELEERAELEE - I
SERAFRERBR - BEEESM
BT AREE R BE BRI
A e R (B SHR B E 1R
B - W REEZREERR
S EERER
BWERE - BEZAKESESA
AERLERANEEAFEREES
ZBEE - FHEERER
E TR SRR Z Al B E R 2 3
ERECRSELEM) TIADHE -
HEBREREBRERINZ SR
BERNEBREBE AR EAEE

HIRFEE
Bl -

H o] Y Bl & 5a R

g o

n =&

FEEKAER A ZERFERE 2
BRIEETIRR » BCAMETHIZ I F 3
FRAEREE © SR m RS a2 B
ABERH BEREIRA - At
EERARMBZEREEER
(REBEEFLERN)  ETBREE
BRAS o AIEIHE IR IE R X5
BREPHGEE  BREERNE

BIHERXETE -

(0) EWMEE

@ 2%

AEESKESHEEDER

THIEHERER

- BRELAEFEGE
B E 2 U as ([ Ho
E2ENE]) HNBBE
mINEREE &

— REEKAFTENSE

BE -



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

(@)

Classification (continued)

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses
will either be recorded in profit or loss or OCI. For
investments in equity instruments that are not held
for trading, this will depend on whether the Group
has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair
value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on trade-date, the date on which the Group
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Financial assets
are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows
from the financial assets have expired or have been
transferred and the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial
asset at its fair value plus, in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss (“FVPL”),
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(o) Financial assets (continued)

©

Measurement (continued)

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity
investments at fair value. Where the Group’s
management has elected to present fair value gains
and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no
subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and
losses to profit or loss following the derecognition of the
investment. Dividends from such investments continue
to be recognised in profit or loss as other income when
the Group’s right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at FVPL are
recognised in other losses in the statement of profit or
loss as applicable. Impairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments measured at
FVOCI are not reported separately from other changes
in fair value.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the
expected credit losses associated with its financial
assets carried at amortised cost. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified
approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which requires
expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial
recognition of the receivables, see note 3(b) for further
details.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(p) Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits held at call
with banks, and other short-term highly liquid investments
with original maturities of three months or less, and bank
overdrafts. In the consolidated and entity balance sheet, bank
overdrafts are shown within “bank borrowings” in current
liabilities.

(g) Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in consolidated other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised
in consolidated other comprehensive income or directly in
equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date in the countries where the Company
and its subsidiaries operate and generate taxable income.
The management periodically evaluates positions taken in
tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method,
on temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill, the deferred income tax is not
accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that
at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting nor
taxable profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (or laws) that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply
when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(a)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes assets and liabilities relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle
the balances on a net basis.

Provisions

Provisions for environmental restoration, restructuring costs
and legal claims are recognised when: the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events; it is probable that an outflow of resource will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Restructuring provisions comprised lease
termination penalties and employee termination payments.
Provisions are not recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood
that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is
recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may
be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the
expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation
using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(s) Foreign currency translation

(i)

(i

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The financial
statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”), which is
the Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions
and from the translation at year- end exchange rates
of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss, except when deferred in
equity as qualifying cash flow hedges and qualifying net
investment hedges.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings and cash and cash equivalents are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss within “finance income or cost”. All other
foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss income
statement within “other gains and/(losses)”. Currency
translation differences arising are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as available
for sale are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the
security and other changes in the carrying amount of
the security. Translation differences related to changes
in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in
consolidated other comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
(s) Foreign currency translation (continued)

(i

(i)

Transactions and balances (continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised in consolidated profit or
loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation
differences on non-monetary financial assets, such
as equities classified as financial assets at FVOCI, are
included in other comprehensive income.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyper-inflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different
from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(@) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at the
date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each statement of
profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this average is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case
income and expenses are translated at the dates
of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting exchange differences are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate. Currency translation differences arising
are recognised in consolidated other comprehensive
income.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(t)

(u)

Government grants

Grants from the PRC government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and the Group will comply with the attached
conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
over the period necessary to match them with the costs that
they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to prepaid land lease payment
and intangible assets are included in non-current liabilities
as deferred income and are credited to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
on a straight-line basis over the expected useful lives of the
related assets.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognized
when they accrue to employees. A provision is made
for the estimated liability for annual leave as a result of
services rendered by employees up to balance sheet
date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave
are not recognized until the time of leave.

(i)  Pension obligations
The employees in Mainland China participate in the
defined contribution retirement plans managed by the
local government authorities whereby they are required
to contribute to the schemes at fixed rates of the
employees’ salary costs. The Group’s contributions to
these plans are charged to profit or loss when incurred.

The Group has no obligations for the payment of the
retirement and other post-retirement benefits of staff
other than the contributions described above.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

(w)

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income over the period of the
borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that
it is probable that some or all of the facilities will be drawn
down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the draw-down
occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee
is capitalised as a prepayment for liquidity services and
amortised over the period of the facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of the
liability for at least 12 months after the end of the reporting
period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold or services performed in the ordinary
course of business. Trade and other receivables are
recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less
allowance for impairment (see note 2(0)(d) for a description of
impairment policy). If collection of trade and other receivables
is expected in one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(x) Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;
(i)  has significant influence over the Group; or

(i) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

()  the entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

(i)  one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entity is a
member);

(i)  both entities are joint ventures of the same third
party;

(iv)  one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third party;

(v)  the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(v the entity controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a); and

(vl a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity).

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

(v)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received and receivable, and represents amounts receivable
for goods supplied or service performed, stated net of
rebates and returns. The Group recognises revenue when
the amount of revenue can be reliably measured; when it
is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the
entity; and when specific criteria have been met for each
of the Group’s activities, as described below. The Group
bases its estimates of returns on historical results, taking into
consideration the type of customers, the type of transactions
and the specifics of each arrangement.

Sales of goods

Revenue from the sale of good directly to the customers
is recognized at the point that the control of the inventory
have passed to the customers, which is primarily upon
the acceptance of the products by the customers. The
customers have full discretion over the products, and there
is no unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’
acceptance of the products.

Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the effective
interest method. For financial assets measured at amortised
cost that are not credit-impaired, the effective interest rate is
applied to the gross carrying amount of the asset.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is required
before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer. If a customer pays consideration
before the Group transfers goods or services to the customer,
a contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or
the payment is due (whichever is earlier). Contractual liabilities
are recognised as revenue when the Group performs under
the contract.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

(z7 Trade and other payables
Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business
from suppliers. Trade payables are classified as current
liabilities if payment is due within one year or less (or in the
normal operating cycle of the business if longer). If not, they
are presented as non-current liabilities.

(aa) Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating
decision-maker. The chief operating decision-maker,
who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as
the executive directors that makes strategic decisions.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

Estimates and judgements are continuously evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable
under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions
that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial
year are addressed below.

(@) Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group tests annually whether assets have suffered
any impairment in accordance with the accounting policy
stated in note 2(m). The recoverable amounts of cash-
generating units have been determined based on value-in-
use calculations. The value-in-use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate present value, which has been prepared on
the basis of the management’s assumptions and estimates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

3. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (continued)

(b)

()

(d)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and contract
assets, advances to staff and other receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
management judgement as groupings of various debtors that
have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is based on
the Group’s historical default rates taking into consideration
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At the
end of each reporting period, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables with
significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for ECL
individually. The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in
estimates. The information about the ECL and the Group’s
trade receivables are disclosed in note 39.

Estimation of useful lives of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful
lives and related depreciation or amortisation charges for its
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets. This
estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment and purchase
know-how and prescription of similar nature and functions. It
could change significantly as a result of technical innovations
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycles.
Management will increase the depreciation or amortisation
charge where useful lives are less than previously estimated
lives, or it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Income taxes

The Company is subject to income tax in the PRC. Significant
judgement is required in determining the provision for income
tax. There are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Company
recognises liabilities for anticipated tax audit issues based
on estimates of whether additional taxes will be due. Where
the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will
impact the current and deferred income tax assets and
liabilities in the period in which such determination is made.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

REVENUE

The principal activities of the Group are manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products.
Revenue represents the invoiced value of merchandise sold less
allowances for returns, discounts, value-added tax and other sales
related taxes.

A
AEEETBXBRUENDHPER
BEEM- WARHEAMNERE -
YEREBRESE - 4 - BEHRLE
fll$H B RRATURR S8 ©

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETIT
Sales of Chinese medicines and FREE G B AR mEHE
pharmaceutical products 705,456 622,250

SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information

Information reported to the Executive Directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision-makers (“CODM”), for the
purpose of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods delivered.

The executive directors have identified that, the Group has only
one reportable operating segment, which is the manufacture and
distribution of Chinese medicines and pharmaceutical products in
the PRC. Since this is the only reportable operating segment of the
Group, no further operating segment analysis thereof is presented.

Geographical information

In addition, the Group’s revenue, expenses, results, assets and
liabilities and capital expenditures are predominantly attributable
to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no
analysis by geographical regions is presented.

Information about major customers

There is no revenue from customers for the years ended 31
December 2021 and 2020 contributed over 10% of the total
operating revenue of the Group.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

6. OTHER INCOME 6. Hftlg A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
et AR®F T AREFIT
Bank interest income FRITAH BHA 5,564 3,826
Other interest income E A F S A 1,577 3,891
Government subsidies (Note) B HaaL (HraE) 564 76
Recognition of deferred income HERIELEWA 32 1,240 1,389
Yield gains on financial assets at fair BARBEG ABERNSRE
value through profit or loss & E R R 1,869 7,721
Gross interest income from financial LA SER AT EM S RME E
assets measured at amortised cost FFI B U s 4858 26,444 20,468
Reversal of provision for obsolete and ~ BEE K & 77 S B &
slow-moving inventories EIES - 974
Compensation received EEEWA - 282
Penalty income B ON 4,810 599
Others HAph 8,110 8,727
Note: During the year ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, the Group received W RBE=ZZ=—FkR=-_T=_FTF+=A

subsidies from various local municipal government bodies in the PRC, which

aimed at the general financing of the business and technology development of

the Group.

7. OTHER GAINS

=+t—BLLEFEE  AKEESTETRBS
MERFHENEDR - §EANRENEE R
EMERE®—REES -

7. Hftss

2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTFT ARETFTT
Net gain on financial assets at fair value BAREABRNEREE
through profit or loss B F W 1,533 417
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZETR)
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. BEMA
2021 2020
—EB-—F =T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Interest expenses on a loan from government BT R E 3k 2 7 2 &
authority - 93
Bank interest expenses H|ITHEER 344 620
344 713
PROFIT BEFORE INCOME TAX BRETBHANER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
iz AR¥T T ARBTIT
Profit before income tax for the year REEZRRETEF AT @A
is arrived at after charging: =EilCE=
Cost of inventories sold BEHEFERA
(excluding additional provision for, (T EIEE INEE X
and write off of obsolete and WEHEEZE MR TE)
slow-moving inventories) 117,485 85,498
Provision for obsolete and slow-moving  BEE K % 477 & B &
inventories 735 -
(Reversal of)/loss allowance JEWE 5 BRK
for trade receivables and BHEE (BiakE
contract assets BE) ek 25 (1,521) 69,809
Provision for loss H A eI GRIE 2.
allowance on other receivables s tE e 26 38,540 23,844
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z SR B < 369 299
Research and development cost A AR 20,578 33,197
Depreciation of property, Y% - = &
plant and equipment e 17 28,089 21,230
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 18 789 932
Employee benefits expenses and BTRMEBARANER
human resources cost BA(TERESE R
(excluding directors’ and EEME)
supervisors’ remuneration):
Salaries and allowances e KER 95,549 113,008
Sales commission (BERE 21,920 20,496
Pension scheme contributions RIKEFT B 552 1,963
Loss on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BB MEE
and equipment 518 8 1,059
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

(@) Income tax represents:

10. AR
(a) FIEBLELE

2021 2020

—E—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARET T

PRC corporate income tax AR B 7 ZE TS AR

— Current year —RFE 30,520 23,511
— Overprovision in prior years — BT FE R - (421)
Deferred taxation (Note 33) BIERTE (H75233) 3,470 393
33,990 23,483

The PRC corporate income tax is provided according to the
relevant laws and regulations in the PRC.

On 16 March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved
the PRC Enterprise Income Tax Law, which became effective
from 1 January 2008. In accordance with the new tax law,
an unified enterprise income tax rate of 25% is applied to
both domestic-invested enterprises and foreign-invested
enterprises.

On 17 September 2015, the Company was accredited
as a “National New and High-tech Enterprise” by the Jilin
Provincial Science and Technology Bureau (&5 #f & &l £ &
fiTEZ). The Company is entitled to a reduced PRC corporate
Income tax rate of 15% for another three consecutive years
commenced since year 2018.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 10. FIEHiZ (&)
(b) Reconciliation between tax expense and b) BHEIZHESTEINZERAH
accounting profit at applicable tax rate: RYRWT :
2021 2020
—E-—fF —Z=TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Profit before income tax B PTIS B A& A 177,273 150,041
National tax calculated at PRC enterprise  12Fh B> 2155 £15%
income tax rate of 15% (2020: 15%) ZEZTF 15%)
FTEA T 26,591 22,506
Tax effect of non-taxable income BERTIA BT TS 52 2 (5,309) (53)
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses AR AT NS E 9,238 1,058
Overprovision in prior years BT BRRR - (421)
Deferred tax on temporary differences in @1 [ i =458 2 IR E i I8
prior year 3,470 393
Income tax expense TSz 33,990 23,483
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

11.

12.

13.

EARNINGS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year ended 31
December 2021 is based on the profit attributable to owners of the
Group for the year of RMB143,283,000 (2020: RMB126,558,000)
and 560,250,000 shares in issue during the year (2020:
560,250,000 shares).

Diluted earnings per share is not presented as there were no
dilutive potential ordinary shares in existence during the years
ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE
COMPANY

Profit attributable to owners of the Company for the year ended
31 December 2021 includes a profit of RMB141,049,000 (2020:
RMB130,142,000) which has been dealt with in the financial
statements of the Company (Note 35).

DIVIDENDS

The Company declared special dividends of RMB3.5 and RMB2.75
cents per share on 28 April 2021 and 5 August 2021 and paid on
30 August 2021 and 18 November 2021 respectively.

No final dividend has been proposed or paid by the Company in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil).

11.

12.

13.

BRER
BHE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIF
B BRENZF THIBIEF A EBE %
B AR FI A R #143,283,0007T (=
T -TFE . AR¥126,558,0007T) & F
N B 217 I 19 560,250,000/ (— T ==&
£ : 560,250,0000%) 5t & -

HREE - FR T _TF+—
A=+—HUIFETEZEEHELR
f% - W EE25| SRESERT -

RRBER ABGEER

BE-_Z-_—&+-_A=+—HILEE
A AREES AR ETR B 3EER A
R#141,049,000c(ZZ =2 F : AR
#130,142,0007T) ' %4 F E R A A )
2 iR R R IR (PIFE35) ©

RE
AABBERRRZZE=Z—FHA=F+N
BER-_ZE-_—FNAREAEREREKE
ERAREISH K275 ED RN =
——FNA=Z=+tBAEk=_ZE=_—F+—A8
A=A

ARFEFRAREABE-T=—%
+ZA=t-RLFEZEARBBRE

ZEITF )

2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARET T
Special dividends FERIAR B 35,016 19,609

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION

(@) Directors’ remuneration
Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant
to the GEM Listing Rules and section 383 of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622) and Part 2 of the
Companies (Disclosure of Information about Benefits of
Directors) Regulation is as follows:

14. EERSRITRAEME

(@) EE=MS
FR - REBEGEM EH R BIREH
(REHEBIN(5622F ) E383 1% K&
(RRI(EBEEZMEER)RODH
2 REMWENESME T

2021 —E-—F
Salaries,
allowances Pension
Directors’ and other Discretionary fund 2021
fees benefits bonus contributions Total
241 ZBC-F
EZHe REMAR RERL  BRSER Fell e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR AR%TR AR%Tx AR%¥Tx AR%Tx
(Note ()
(Hizt)
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoA(F/E) - 272 248 - 520
Zhang Xiao Guang KRB - 218 186 8 412
Zhao Bao Gang EEN - 173 111 13 297
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 60 55 9 124
Zhang Vi RE - 195 133 3 331
Xu Xiang Fu GAEPS - 106 111 3 220
Indlependlent Non-Executive BUHHTEE :
Directors:
Gao Qi Pin (resigned on 5 August mEmMR=ZZT=—F
2021) NARAEE) - 66 - - 66
Gao Yong Cai SkA - - - - -
Tian Jie g - 10 - - 10
Bai Jun Gui (appointed on HEE(R-T=_—%
23 September 2021) AA=+=R
BZE) - - - - -
- 1,100 844 36 1,980
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Biaz - () B EA BT NEE SHERE

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 14. EERSHRITHRAEME(E)
REMUNERATION (continued)

(a) Directors’ remuneration (continued) (a) ES=M<(E)
2020 —E_EF
Salaries,

allowances Pension
Directors’ and other  Discretionary fund 2020
fees benefits bonus  contributions Total
2= —E-FE
EEHE REMFR WEEL  RESHR et 6

RVB'OO0O ~ RMB'000 ~ RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
ARBTT AREBTR ARBTT ARETE ARETRL

(Note ()
(Hi:20)
Executive Directors: HITEE :
Zhang Hong (Chairman) RoA(F/E) - 267 248 = 515
Zhang Xiao Guang REEN - 212 187 8 407
Zhao Bao Gang b=t - 165 111 27 303
Wu Guo Wen REIX - 60 55 8 123
Zhang Yi RE - 176 133 5 314
Xu Xiang Fu fRmx - 102 111 5 218
Indlependlent Non-Executive BUHHTEE :
Directors:
Gao Qi Pin SEM - 62 - - 62
Gao Yong Cai BT - - 10 - 10
Tian Jie H - 25 10 - 35
- 1,069 865 53 1,987
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Biat - () B AR NEE SHERE
Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having F THEFELELASELR
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results, BEE  AARBRAIELER
individual performance and comparable market statistics. MSEREETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)

(b) Senior executives’ remuneration
Details of remuneration paid to the Supervisors of the
Company which were all below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB817,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
RMB839,000 for the year ended 31 December 2020) are as

14. EERERITBRAEME ()

SRITHAEM S

AEERARASEEZ T 2ie
R 1,000,000 L (REE=F
——F+-_A=+—HLFEMRE
RARMS17,000c hREBEE-Z

(b)

follows: —EE+ A=+ HILFEHRE
M ARY839,0007T) + HFBM
T
2021 —E-—F
Salaries,
allowances
and other  Discretionary Pension fund 2021
benefits bonus contributions Total
F2ac =1 —E--F
R H % BETEAL BRESMHER et e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥TR AR¥ETR
(Note (i))
(a)
Supervisors: £
Qiao Xiao Chun BEL 66 55 3 124
Wang Ying Xu FEE 50 5 3 58
Yan Li Yu BiEE 42 5 3 50
158 65 9 232
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Hiat - () B AR HNEE SRR

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.

w THERE2EAKEL
BEE  AARRRAELR
MHBIBRETE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’
REMUNERATION (continued)
(b) Senior executives’ remuneration (continued)

14, EERSHRITHRAEME ()
(b) BRATBAEME (H)

2020 —E-EE
Salaries,
allowances
and other Discretionary Pension fund 2020
benefits bonus contributions Total
£ A= —E-TE
R H fh Fllzs BB TEAL RIREHEFR R e
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT ARETIT ARETT
(Note (i)
(HE)
Supervisors: 2%
Qiao Xiao Chun BEL 64 55 5 124
Wang Ying Xu T&EME 37 5 5 47
Yan Li Yu BiEE 35 5 5 45
136 65 15 216
Note: (i) A discretionary bonus is recommended by the Remuneration Btat - () HIEEARFTHNES SHERBE

Committee and is approved by the board of directors, having
determined with reference to the Group’s operating results,
individual performance and comparable market statistics.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

14. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’

REMUNERATION (continued)

(c) Five highest paid individuals
The five highest paid individuals during the year included zero
Directors (2020: zero Directors) whose remuneration were set
out in (a) above. Details of remuneration of the five (2020: five)
highest paid, non-director employee whose remuneration
was below HK$1,000,000 (equivalent to RMB817,000 for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and RMB839,000 for the
year ended 31 December 2020) are as follows:

14. EERERITBRAEME ()

()

TEESHFMAL

FRNRAEERT WA LTBRRESERE
F(ZZ—_ZF TF=F) - HEl
THBR EX(@EE#T - Fo -
AEBRhEESTWNEESES
T -FE (R ZHFMER
1,000,000 L (B ZE =T = —4F
+=—A=+— E¢¢F$H~fﬁw\
R¥817000c RBE_ZT T F
+=—A=+— ElJtEWHi?EA/\E
#£839,0007T) « HEHMFFIBLT ¢

2021 2020
—B-—F  ZTC%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTTE  ARBTE

Salaries, allowances and other benefits ¥ & - 7284 K& E A Rl 2,832 3,178
Pension scheme contributions BIREEEIRK 6 24

2,838 3,202
Other than the emoluments of directors disclosed in (a) fREX @B HENESHEI -

above, the emoluments of supervisors and other senior
management whose profiles are included in the Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management section of this
report were below HK$1,000,000, equivalent to RMB817,000
(2020: equivalent to RMB839,000) for the year ended 31
December 2021 and for the year ended 31 December 2020.

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020, no
emoluments were paid by the Group to these highest paid
employees as an inducement to join, or upon joining the
Group, or as compensation for loss of office.

BNHERAFEESL R ERE
BEE-—NESREMERE
BAEHMBERBEE T —_—%F
T A=+ HUEFEERBE_Z
—EE+ A=+ —HIEEEHK
1,000,000 7T © HHE R AR
817,000(ZZE=FF : HERA
R #839,0007T) °

RE-F-—SR-F-FF-
A=+—RILEE - AREILRA
2% BBHNEAL N EAMSIE
BE SR A KRB 2 5
B - o W -

EMEEEREECEERHBERAR
—T——FFIR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZETR)
15. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 15. EIRERIFHE
Defined contribution retirement plans EREHFRIRETE
Pursuant to the relevant labour rules and regulations in the BRI B AEE S BRI ROER - AEE
PRC, the Group participate in a defined contribution retirement 28 i B A T BT R AR A D E
benefit scheme (the “Scheme”) organised by the PRC municipal B FRANEBA GBI (% 8]) - &
government authority in the Jilin Province whereby the Group bt ARBAEAEWREENHABELE
is required to make contributions to the Scheme at certain B — B 2t RZET IR o Ho75 BUF
percentage of the eligible employees’ relevant salaries. The local MY RN EB N2 RAREFTE
government authority is responsible for the entire pension obligation BEEBE -
payable to retired employees.
The Group’s contribution to retirement benefits schemes for the REEZZT=-—F+A=+—HItHF
year ended 31 December 2021 amounted to RMB597,000 (2020: § - A& B AT T B AR IR A8 F 5T 8
RMB2,031,000). The Group has no other material obligation for the BARESI7,000(ZZEFF : AR
payment of pension benefits associated with the Scheme. #2,031,0007T) ° AN BN MR E A 5 B %
TR ERRARBENIREE
16. BEARER BIOLOGICAL ASSETS 16. FEBEYEE
Bearer biological assets comprise: TRRBEMEERLE
2021 2020
—E-—fF —E-TE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Ginseng, at cost A2 EANME 15,080 14,905
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt A=+—HZKHE 15,080 14,905
Recondiliation of carrying amounts of bearer biological assets: TRBEMEEREBELE
2021 2020
—B-—F —TEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Ginseng AZ
Carrying amount at 1 January R—A—RZEREEAE 14,905 13,402
Additions during the year FERNRNE 175 1,503
Carrying amount at 31 December RT=A=+—HZKRHE 15,080 14,905

The carrying amounts of ginseng were valued at their original costs.
These assets are in their early stage of cultivation and preparation
and active market prices are not available. In addition, the Directors
are of the view that the original costs would approximate their fair
values at this stage of their development.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

17. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

17. Y% - BENEE

Furniture,
Plantand Transportation fixtures and
Buildings machinery equipment equipment Total
HE #£B
BT TR R EE ERRE SET ] @it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT ARETT AREFT ARETT ARETT
Cost: AR
At 1 January 2020 WZE-ZEF—A—H 153,729 121,490 12,430 4,351 292,000
Additions AE 5,367 29,327 3,338 216 38,248
Disposals e (1,542) (7,267) (179) (182) (9,170)
Transfer EE2 4 - 8,768 - - 8,768
At 31 December 2020 RZZ=TF+-A=+—-H 157,554 152,318 15,589 4,385 329,846
Additions AE 39,045 26,018 3,545 261 68,869
Disposals & (7,278) (9,130) - - (16,408)
Transfer Ebi - 239 - - 239
Acquisition of subsidiaries WEERB AR (H#41)

(Note 41) - . - 64 64
At 31 December 2021 WZE=—#+-A=1—H 189,321 169,445 19,134 4710 382,610
Accumulated depreciation: 2EHME
At 1 January 2020 WZE-ZEF—A—H 47,727 89,871 5,863 3,297 146,758
Charge for the year (Note 9) R iE(A7:29) 5,010 14,059 1,683 478 21,230
Written back on disposals HE&E (494) (7,262) (179) (176) (8,111)
At 31 December 2020 NZEZFET-A=1—H 52,243 96,668 7,367 3,599 159,877
Chargeforthe year (Note 9) R #(A7:29) 7975 16,393 3,370 351 28,089
Written back on disposals L ERE (3,675) (275) - - (3,950)
At 31 December 2021 RZE=—#+=-A=1+—H 56,543 112,786 10,737 3,950 184,016
Carrying amount; FEE
At 31 December 2020 N-_E-FF+-A=1—H 105,311 55,650 8,222 786 169,969
At 31 December 2021 WZE=—#+-A=1—H 132,778 56,659 8,397 760 198,594

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

18. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 18. EAEEE

(@  The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and @ FRAAKEZFEAEEERAEBER
the movements during the year are as follows: FEnT -

Land use rights

90

T it fE A
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFIT
As at 1 January R—HA—H 37,408 38,340
Depreciation charge ERX (789) (932)
As at 31 December R+—A=+—A” 36,619 37,408

(b)  The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

P18 25 58 A AR B AR R R A

are as follows: I
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T ARET T

Depreciation charge of right-of-use FREEENERSY

assets 789 932
Total amount recognised in profit or loss 185 AR MR A IB 4858 789 932
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

19. CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS 10. EEIRE
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETTT
At 1 January w—H—H 124,305 74,061
Additions IR 23,791 59,012
Transfer R (239) (8,768)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8 147,857 124,305
20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. AMIBATINRE
The Company
VNN
2021 2020
—E-—-F —T-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T AREFIT
Unlisted investment, at cost JELETRE - HAME 86,480 85,000
Amounts due from subsidiaries RSB /B~ B FRIE 67,031 =
Amounts due to subsidiaries ENLRIEVNGIE e (68,772) (69,238)

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

20. RHBATNIKRE (&

Particulars of the subsidiaries as at 31 December 2021 were as R_T-_—F+-A=+—H WEBQ
follows: RIFIBAT ¢
Country of incorporation Issued and fully Percentage of
and operation and paid share capital/ ordinary shares  Principal
Name of subsidiary legal entity status registered capital held directly  activity
R 17AT)4 BRTRAR EERE
WEAR AR RenERREEER LN BE/ZMER EZBEROGMNEIL TEER
AMERTEREMEEERA HE - BREEAR AR #5,000,0007T 100% EEEE
PRC, limited liability company RMB5,000,000 Dormant
AMERERENRRARAR HE - BREEAR AE#20,000,0007T 100% SUERH HEREER
([=ER" PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
health products
EMRESRAEREERR HE - AREELA A& #20,000,0007 100% EERABRHRABK
([ Eﬁﬁj) B
PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Manufacture and
distribution of
beverages and pre-
packaged food
EMERERHEREERAA] HE - BREEAR AE#20,000,0007T 100%  HAREFEE
([REEHE] )" PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Not yet commenced
business
EMEREEMHRERAR FE - BRETAA AR#20,000,0007T 100% DERRER
([R&l)# PRC, limited liability company RMB20,000,000 Distribution of health
products
HNA B RS HE - BREEAR ARH500,0007T 100%  PiRREEmR
BEREEAH PRC, limited liability company RMB500,000 Distribution of health
products
BEREBREERAR HE - AREFEAA AER980,0007T 100%  PiEREER
PRC, limited liability company RMB980,000 Distribution of health
products
The amounts due from/(to) subsidiaries classified as current W, (KB ARKIEDBIHE
assets/(liabilities) respectively in the Company’s balance sheet are ARRBRBEEABBRZME i*/ (B
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand. &) BAEEHR  AERIREKER -
#1 As at 31 December 2021, & /R had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be #1 R=ZZF=Z—F+=-A=+—08  RERLE
fully paid-up before 10 September 2026. BRBRA - ERABR =T FNLA+AH
RIREE R ©
#2 As at 31 December 2021, K#EER i1 had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be #2 RZZTZ—F+=-A=+—H RERML
fully paid-up before 1 February 2023. BHRKRAN - ARAEGNR _ZBE_=F_F—
HATEEHRE -
#3 As at 31 December 2021, K#EFEHIE had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to #3 R=ZZB=_—F+=-A=1+—8  REFHE
be fully paid-up before 30 January 2023. WRHBRRAE - ERAENR T =_=F—A
=T HAESAR -
#4  As at 31 December 2021, /& had no paid-up capital. Its capital is to be fully #4 R=ZF=Z—F+=-A=+—08 RELEHXK
paid-up before 1 March 2038. BIA - HBRAER -_ZE=/\FE=A—HAH
BEHR -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

20. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

21.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at the end
of the reporting period or at any time during both years.

. RITB R RRIRE (&)

P /8 2~ =) 13 4 X e o A R Bk P fE 6 TR Y

ERIREEITEREBES

INTANGIBLE ASSETS . BEEE
RMB’000
ARBEFIT
Cost: RN :
At 1 January 2020 RZEZTF—H—H 68,135
Additions NE =
At 31 December 2020 KRB -_FF+_A=+—H 68,135
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 41) URBEI B A Al (Hfat41) 32
At 31 December 2021 RZZE=Z—F+=ZHA=+—H 68,167
Accumulated amortisation and Rt BERBERSSE :
impairment loss:
At 1 January 2020 N—E-_ZTF—F—H 68,135
Impairment B -
At 31 December 2020 and RZBE_ZEF+-_A=+—HK
31 December 2021 —E-—F+=-A=+—H 68,135
Carrying amount: BRMEE :
At 31 December 2021 P — 32
N

At 31 December 2020

Purchased know-how and prescription were acquired through
research and development cooperation with independent third
parties and were all acquired in cash.

During the year, the Directors reviewed the carrying amount of
the purchased know-how and prescription based on the future
economic benefits generated from these assets. No impairment
loss was recognised for the current year (2020: Nil).

AR R BT Ty BB =77 A 1B
- BREUARESEBA -

FR - EERBERFEERRELZE
7 25 AR B P RE A BT R BT 2 R
B -AEEEBRRABUEER(ZZ_F
FE)

TG B REA(CEERNERAR]
T FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

22. GOODWILL 22. BHE
2021 2020
—E-—fF =T F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARBT T
Carrying amount BRMEIE
At 1 January Rn—H—H - -
Arising on business combinations (note41) EREHEE M F41) 6,254 -
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 6,254 =
The carrying amount of goodwill is allocated to the cash-generating EEZEEETD RIS E o H+ 2% 217

23.

units of distribution of Chinese medicine. The recoverable amounts
of the cash-generating units are determined based on value-in-use
calculations. These calculations use cash flow projections based
on financial budgets approved by management. The cash flows
are discounted using a discount rate which is pre-tax and reflects
specific risks relating to the relevant segments. The values assigned
to the key assumptions on market development and discount
rates are consistent with external information sources. During the
year ended 31 December 2021, the directors of the Company
conducted a review of goodwill and no impairment loss in respect
of goodwill has been recognised (2020: RMBNIl).

SELEN  BREeEAEMZAIOKRSE
HRBEFEREBEZFEREAETE - 25
STERAFERZBHRESRAESEEL
EZ T BIEE AR - e R ERBA
K A] 2 e #E B8 > 2D 5 B B 2 B ER SR Bk
IH o MgEEEBRRIXEEKLELIEX
BN BRI — R - HE_T——F
+—A=1+—HIFE  KARREFHE
TREER:  BYEREEEARES
B(CE-_ZTF: AREZT)-

INVENTORIES 23. &
2021 2020
—E—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Raw materials FEM R 24,182 33,627
Work in progress ER 36,263 12,863
Finished goods BURK 26,723 8,630
87,168 55,120

Less: Provision for obsolete and W BEERBHTERE

slow-moving inventories (855) (120)
86,313 55,000

During the year ended 31 December 2021, provision on obsolete
and slow-moving inventories amounted to RMB735,000 was made
(2020: written back of provision of RMB974,000).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

23.

24,

25.

INVENTORIES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no obsolete and slow-
moving inventories were written off (2020: Nil).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, no obsolete and slow-
moving inventories which the provision were already made in prior
years, were written off (2020: Nil).

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

23.

24,

FE(&)
BHE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIF
[§ - WESNEZEMEHETEEDME(Z
TFF E) o
BHE_Z_—F+_A=+—HIF
[§ - WHEHERUARFEEELBERNE
BENEEFERBEFEERME( =S
ZEF ) o

BAREFARSENEREE

2021 2020
—E-—fF —Z=TF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBEFIT
Current assets MBEE
Unlisted financial assets e rRERE 176,533 60,417

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are within level 3 of fair value hierarchy (note 39(f)).

ASSETS
(@

BAREFARENEREEAAER
NAERBRTE=ERME3()) °

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 25. EWESRARANEE
Trade receivables (a) EWEZEX

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARETTT

Trade receivables FEUE 5 8RR 317,981 281,746
Less: Loss allowance W ER (87,729) (75,372)

Trade receivables — net FEUE 5 AR — F5 230,252 206,374
()  The Group’s policy is to allow an average credit period ) AKREBXRAGLETEZIERF

of 180 days to its trade customers.

F#H180H 2= EH) -

TG B REA(CEERNERAR]
T FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 25. EWESERIESNEE (&)

ASSETS (continued)
(@) Trade receivables (continued)
(i)  The ageing analysis of trade receivables, based on
the invoice date and net of loss allowance of trade
receivables, is as follows:

(@)

W E 5 iR ()

(i)

REZHZAHRNGKEKRE
SEEREIREE  BRES
R BRE DTN

2021 2020
—E-—fF —Z=TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARETTT

0-30 days 0-30H 89,503 77,055
31-90 days 31-90H 50,295 48,771
91-180 days 91-180H 55,224 40,521
More than 180 days HB®180H 35,230 40,027

230,252 206,374

@iy ~ The Group applies the simplified approach to provide for
expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision
for trade receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, these receivables have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and the aging from
billing. See Note 39(a) for further information about
expected credit loss provision. Impairment losses are
recognised in consolidated income statement within
“administrative expenses”. See note 2(0) for information
about how impairment losses are calculated.

Jilin Province Huinan Changlong Bio-pharmacy Company Limited
ANNUAL REPORT 2021

(i)

AEBERBEEMBREE
RIS AT AR AL T /AT 3
EHREEER  HEAMHRE
WE ZRAEH e R HE
BEE - RFAFEEBEES
B RFREREARE LR
EERBREFHMREREKE
1o - EREBHEEER
BRiEngE—FER  RWE
39(a) ° AIEEEN RS W
RITTBRAX IR - B
MEBEIEE 2 ER
RHEE2(0) ©



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT 25. EWESERIESNEE (&)
ASSETS (continued)

(@) Trade receivables (continued) (@ EWEZERME)
(i) (continued) iy (4&)
The movements in the loss allowance during the year FANBEBENEHNT ¢

are as follows:

2021 2020
—E-—fF —Z=TF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETR ARETTT

Opening balance FEEH 75,372 35,684
Addition Yl 12,357 39,688
Closing balance FRERR 87,729 75,372
Loss allowance had been made for the estimated EEEEDHREEEM 2H
irrecoverable amounts arising from the sale of goods. AR A W EISREIEH c 5
The loss allowance was determined by the directors E2ZBTHERESR - B0
with reference to past default experience, current KEBRLAEEEREE
economic conditions and forward-looking information. EEEESE -
(v) The Directors consider the carrying amount of trade vy EZERB - BRESZERZ
receivables approximates their fair value. REEEEAEEE °
(b) Contract assets (b) EHEE
2021 2020
—B-—fF —T_EF
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®ETT AR¥ETT

Contract assets BHEE 71,957 109,800
Less: Loss allowance o SRS (50,167) (64,045)
Contract assets — net BHEE—F58 21,790 45,755

ERARERELCEEROERAT o7
T FFH



NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26. HthEWRIE - G RFAMFTR

PREPAYMENTS |
2021 2020
—E—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBEFIT
Deposits and prepayments & RIERERIE 38,007 40,614
Advances to staff, net M8 TR - F5 7,021 8,581
Other receivables, net Efb e EIE - 558 96,671 45,693
Bills receivables L e 147,568 162,481
Interest income receivable JEYH B - 454
289,267 257,823

During the year, no provision for impairment on deposits and
prepayments was made (2020: Nil).

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, certain of the Group’s advances
to staff and other receivables were considered to be impaired.
For advances to staff and other receivables, impairment is
measured as 12-month expected credit losses since there has
been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.
The impaired receivables related to staff and debtors that were
in financial difficulties and the following loss allowance has been
made.

Advances to staff

FA - WEHTE RENRIAELRE
BE(CZ-_2F &)

RZEBE-Z—FR_ZE_ZTF+_-A
=+—H AEEREIBRGHETR
H R E M EBGRIBHEREBERE - 5iH
BISRKEMEBKRRIEBEMS @ BER
ER12EAEHEEEE  REZSEY
FEREEERRT ERNRER - %5
EURE A FE U 5k T8 A B2 FE 1A B B B Y
BIMERAER  EBEDERIAT
ES1BRAE -

Other receivables

B E T #% H b EWFRIE
2021 2020 2021 2020
—EC-F ZZZTF B ZTITF
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETIT ARETT ARETT
Gross amounts ks 21,433 22,811 154,749 65,413
Less: Loss allowance B IR (14,412 (14,230) (58,078) (19,720)
Net amounts AEE 7,021 8,581 96,671 45,693
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

27.

26. OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 26. HMtEWRIE - T RFENARK
PREPAYMENTS (continued) 15 (#)
As at 31 December 2021, except for an amount of RZE-_—F+=-_A=+—H BAHK
RMB120,000,000 (2020: RMB50,000,000), which are secured, AR #120,000,000c(ZFE=FF : A
interest bearing at 4% per annum and repayable within agreed R #50,000,00077T ) #5018 LAHE 48 Gn AE 1
fixed terms, the Group does not hold any agreed collateral over R AR RA%ET B RERZEENEE
the balances. The movements in the loss allowance of advances to HARR B R A - AN &R B30 M bl 4 oA
staff and other receivables during the year, are as follows: REFWEEERR FAMEILER
MEMEWFIEEERERNZENT

2021 2020

—E-—-F —E-FF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AREET T ARBT T

At 1 January n—HA—H 33,950 10,106

Additions of loss allowance 18N 1A B A 38,540 23,844

At 31 December R+—A=+—~” 72,490 33,950

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TERM 27. B RBESEEYMREREFER

DEPOSITS

Cash and bank balances comprise cash held by the Group and
short-term bank deposits with an original maturity of three months
or less. The directors consider the carrying amount of these assets
approximates their fair value.

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations
and Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB
for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

RehfTHEREFRASERERES R
REBEA/=ERHATZEHRTTF
R EFZRR UWEEEZREEREA
NAEREE °

ARET#EmMABARMER - &
T REFEAEZINESEAE - &
EeERNESERT AEEEE
BBEBETINELEZ BITIBAR
B BB EH o

2021 2020

—E-—fF —Z=TF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBETFIT

Bank balances IR1TIER 55,294 24,017
Short-term bank deposits with original maturity JREIEIH DR ={EA 2

of less than three months RHISRTTIER - 2,000

Bank balances and cash IRITHEHR MRS 55,294 26,017

TG B REA(CEERNERAR]
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

27. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND TERM
DEPOSITS (continued)
Short-term bank deposits and bank balances and cash are
denominated in RMB.

Cash at banks carry interest at market rates ranging from 0.3%
to 0.35% (2020: 0.3% to 0.35%) per annum. Short-term bank
deposits with original maturity of less than three months carry
interest at market rates ranging from Nil (2020: 1.82% to 2.1%) per
annum.

28. FINANCIAL ASSETS MEASURED AT

27. RERBEFEYREBRFN

(%)
CHBRITERRBITEBRAEUAR
A 3IE -

BITHEGFEEMENEXES F03% =
0.35%:T B(ZZ=_FF : §F03% %
0.35%) ° REISA LR = A 2 =R
TEFENTEF0%MTHEFETE (=
T-TFE  FE1.82%E2.1%) °

28. LHEHERATENESREE

AMORTISED COST
2021 2020
—E-—fF —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREET T ARBT T
Term deposits with initial term of over JREIEFE KR =1E A
three months and less than one year NA—F R EHRTFR 30,424 156,501
Term deposits with initial term of FEERIE B AR —F
over one year K E HATE 3R 776,494 648,519
806,918 805,020

(@ Bank deposits with original maturity of more than three
months carry interest at a market rates of 2.25% to 4.125%
(2020: 1.54% to 4.125%) per annum.

(b)  No provision for impairment loss for these financial assets
was made at 31 December 2021 and 31 December 2020 as
the financial assets were considered to be of low credit risk
and the expected credit loss of these financial assets was
minimal. Deposits were placed with the licensed banks in the
PRC with good credit rating. All these financial assets had
no history of default and there was no unfavourable current
conditions and forecast of future economic conditions at the
reporting dates.

(c) The fair values of financial assets maturing after twelve
months are disclosed in note 39(f)(iii).
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T_THE+-_A=+—H E&4%
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

29. TRADE PAYABLES

The ageing analysis of trade payables, based on the invoice date, is

29. BN EZR™
UTAEREEABHOENE SRR

as follows: BRER AT ¢
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FTF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETFIT
Current BEA 12,784 13,535
31-90 days 31-90H 12,469 4,404
Over 90 days HB3E90H 26,082 24,689
51,335 42,628

The average credit period from the Group’s trade creditors is 90 to AEEESHERAZFHEEHR AR
180 days. £180H -

ENESEAETERREZRBAKRE
T EFR/ENEZERZIKEE

Trade payables principally comprise amounts outstanding for trade
purchases. The directors consider the carrying amount of trade

payables approximates their fair value.

BEENERE -

30. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 30. HittEERFIERETER
2021 2020
—E-—F —E-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT ARBT T
Other payables E AR 205,874 101,867
Accrued salaries et T & 15,403 9,659
Accrued welfare [EEHERE 6,087 6,872
Bills payable NS - 18,493
Accruals fEsrE A 177,525 150,951
404,889 287,842

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

31. LOAN FROM GOVERNMENT AUTHORITY 31.

Loan was obtained from Huinan County Finance Bureau for the
purpose of research and development activities of the Group. The
loan is unsecured and bear interest at one year term saving interest

BB S X

R 95 B T 1% B R R R A BT 3
EH2A  ZEERAMILR - R
ARIBITHRMGA) — F A8 7% 100.32

rate promulgated by The People’s Bank of China plus 0.3% per
annum. The loan is repayable by instalments until July 2022 as

MEMEGE - ZREERAR T

7=

follows:

2021 2020

—E-—F —E-FTF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARMT T ARETTT

Within one year —FK 400 400
After one year but within two years R—FREMEN - =
400 400

32. DEFERRED INCOME 32. IEZLEWA

2021 2020

—EB-—F — T T4

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARET T

At 1 January n—H—H 44,182 45,571
Arising from government grants REBTEE 595 =
Credited to profit or loss (Note 6) RIBRAET AH7E6) (1,240) (1,389)
At 31 December R+—A=+—H 43,537 44,182
Carrying amount at 31 December R+ A=+—HiKAE 43,587 44,182
Portion classified as current liabilities DERRBEEHD (1,583) (989)
Portion classified as non-current liabilities SERIERBAELD 41,954 43,193

During the year ended 2021, the Group did not receive government
grants (2020: Nil) from Jilin Province Finance Bureau and Huinan
County Finance Bureau in relation to support investments on
plant and equipment for further research and development of the
Group’s intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)
33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX 33. Zﬁﬁﬁﬁ' S8
The analysis of deferred income tax assets and liabilities is as BIEFFSHEERBE2ZTWT -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—F —EIEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®F T ARETIT
Deferred tax assets: EEFIBEE ¢
— Deferred tax assets to be recovered after — A RRIE1 218 A & Uk B 2 BT
more than 12 months HIBEE (1,510) (1,510)
Deferred tax liabilities: RIERIEAE :
— Deferred tax liabilities to be recovered after — — A5 A ER:E121E A 18 Uk Bl 2 IR T
more than 12 months HIBEE 3,863 393
Deferred tax (assets)/liabilities, net RERIE(EE)BEFHE 2,353 (1.117)
The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as IEAEFTETER B AR B2 shan | -
follows:
2021 2020
—E-—-F —ET-FF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T AR¥ET T
As at 1 January R—A— (1,510) (1,510)
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) RIBZEA qu)\( Kizt10@) - -
(1,510) (1,510)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B HmRME
(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UANREZT)
33. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued) 33. IEHEFTSB(E)
The movements during the year in the deferred tax assets and FRNREERBEBEERGERNESHOT :
liabilities are as follows:
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIEE S
2021 2020
—E-—fF —Z=2F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
At 1 January n—A—H \ 393 =
Debited/(credited) to profit or loss i =B A A C PN
(Note 10(a)) (Ki5#10@)) 3,470 393
At 31 December R+=—A=+—8H 3,863 393
Deferred tax assets EEHEBEEE
2021 2020
—E-—F —ETF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBT T
At 1 January R—A— (1,510) (1,510)
Credited to profit or loss (Note 10(a)) = Ert E‘l‘)\( Ht5£10() - -
As at 31 December R+=—A=+—8H (1,510) (1,510)
The deferred tax (assets)/liabilities recognised at the balance sheet REEBERRZEERIB(EE) BE
date represented deferred tax arising from accelerated depreciation R EIERITER S 2 RIERIE o
allowances.
34. SHARE CAPITAL 34. R
2021 2020
—B--F —EoTHE
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
R & G- frEr ]
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETIT
Domestic shares of RMB0.10 each SR TEI{E A R#0.107TH)
NER 387,750,000 38,775 387,750,000 38,775
H shares of RMBO0.10 each FREBEARB0.107TH
HA% 172,500,000 17,250 172,500,000 17,250
560,250,000 56,025 560,250,000 56,025
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

35. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 35. A AR EEEBERLRBEEDN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY BE)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (@ AQATMEEERBR
As at 31 December
Mt=A=t+-8H
2021 2020
“B--F e e 3
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000

Wit ARBTR ARETT

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE

Non-current assets kRBEE
Bearer biological assets TR ENMEE 15,080 14,905
Property, plant and equipment ME - BEREE 195,411 164,377
Investment properties REME 1,738 3,604
Right-of-use assets ERERE 36,619 37,408
Construction in progress TR 147,857 124,305
Investment in subsidiaries RHBARAIRE 20 86,480 85,000
Intangible assets BVEAE - -
Financial assets measured at amortised cost Wﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁriﬁ’lérﬂ BE 776,494 648,519
Deferred tax assets BERBEE 1,510 1,510
1,261,189 1,079,628

Current assets /?‘ EJ:%E
Inventories F& 66,816 53,229
Trade receivables FEH&%J SER 147,169 205,631
Contract assets ANEE 21,790 45,755
Other receivables, deposits and prepayments Heb s - 7T KB HI 228,076 237,523
Amounts due from subsidiaries BB ARRE 20 67,031 =
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss &AM Ex ABHH S RIEE 176,533 60,417
Financial assets measured at amortised cost DR AT ENEREE 30,424 156,501
Cash and cash equivalents Re kR eEEY 46,430 21,412
784,269 780,468
Current liabilities nEEE

Trade payables [ERTE S8R 47,981 41,949
Contract liabilities AMAE 9,575 7,446
Other payables and accruals HiENTBRETER 316,162 267,596
Amounts due to subsidiaries R EINGIE R 20 68,772 69,238
Deferred income EEWA 989 989
Income tax payable RS FriSHE 31,272 26,642
Other tax payables it HIE 32,778 26,182
Loan from government authority TR E 400 400
Dividend payable RS 32,136 23,478
540,065 463,920
Net current assets MBEEFE 244,204 316,548
Total assets less current liabilities BEERTBARE 1,505,393 1,396,176
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

35. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 35. A AR EEEBERLRBEEDN

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 28 (&)
(a) Balance sheet of the Company (continued) (@) ALAFMEEEEBER(E)
As at 31 December
R+t=BA=+-AH
2021 2020
“EC-f e S 23
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
Wiz ARETR ARETTL
Non-current liabilities € =i
Other payable HAERNFE 953 =
Deferred income EEWA 41,954 43193
Deferred tax liabilities EXEREEE 3,863 393
46,770 43,586
Net assets EERE 1,458,623 1,352,590
EQUITY i
Share capital R 34 56,025 56,025
Reserves i 35(b) 1,402,598 1,296,565
Total equity s 1,458,623 1,362,590

ZERBEREN - __FMWA
“TtHtNBEEESHERBRER

These financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 29 April 2022.

fff o
ZHANG HONG ZHAO BAO GANG
(G HEE
Director Director
Ea E=a
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

35. BALANCE SHEET AND MOVEMENT OF 35. A RN EEABREHEN
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued) 28 (&)
(b) Movement of reserves of the Company (b) AQTREBEHEE

Statutory
Share surplus Retained
premium reserve profits Total
BROBRE EERSHEE REER Mgt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT ARBETT ARETE
(Note () (Note (ir))
(Hriz) (Hrazy)
At 1 January 2020 R-ZZE-_FF—F—H 51,098 33,242 1,101,692 1,186,032
Profit for the year REEHF - - 130,142 130,142
Dividends paid SRR E - - (19,609) (19,609)
At 31 December 2020 RZZT=TF
+-F=+—8H 51,098 33,242 1,212,225 1,296,565
Profit for the year REEHH - - 141,049 141,049
Dividends paid THRRE - - (35,016) (35,016)
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE——4F
+-F=+—8 51,098 33,242 1,318,258 1,402,598
Notes: Hiaz -
i) Share premium (i) BRAD e E

(ii)

The Company’s share premium account represents the premium arising
from shares issued at a price in excess of their par value per share.

Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the Company Law of the PRC and the Company’s
articles of association, the Company and its PRC subsidiaries will
appropriate 10 percent of their annual statutory net profit (after offsetting
any prior years’ losses) to the statutory surplus reserve account. When
the balance of such reserve reaches 50 percent of these entities’ share
capital, any further appropriation is optional. The statutory surplus
reserve can be utilised to offset prior years’ losses or to issue bonus
shares. However, such statutory surplus reserve must be maintained at
a minimum of 25 percent of share capital after such issuance.

RRRRG & ERABBEREE L
BIRIIT 2 RN EE 24 (E °

(ii) EERBREE
RIBFBEARERANAR R ZERZA
Al AR R REFBEHE R RN A
FFEEAEERE - BARE10%HMF
EAEHNEACRABRFEFD - B
ZRBRFBENEHREZSTAARAZ
50% * ARRIAEITEERG#E—F
BHRIE - AT RHBRFEEN AERE
BEFENBERBETAR - A
AR TRETRBHEASROER
HRIRAHI25% ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

36.

37.

38.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS

At the balance sheet date, the Group had capital commitments
contracted for but not provided for as follows:

36.

BARIE
REH 8 - AREBETHBRIERED
AARAEMRMT -

2021 2020
—EB-—fF —ETHF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETTT
Acquisition of intangible assets WisER &= 1,750 1,750
Acquisition of property, plant and equipment  BEAYIE © B N & 1,042 3,654
2,792 5,304
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BEALRS
Related party transactions concerned with numbers of key FRNHEFTEETEENE B @BEA
management during the year comprised only remuneration paid to TRGEBREANTESZHHE - H
the Executive Directors, and is set out in Note 14 to the financial Bl P B 15 R i sk 14 ©
statements.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 38. EXEMER
Capital management BEXER

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, so
that it can continue to provide returns for shareholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk and by
securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its capital
structure to ensure optimal capital structure and shareholder
returns that might be possible with higher levels of borrowings and
the advantages and security afforded by a sound capital position,
and makes judgements to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its capital
structure using a gearing ratio, which is total debts divided by
adjusted capital. Total debts represent total borrowings. Adjusted
capital includes all components of shareholders’ equity less
unrealized reserves.

In order to maintain or adjust the gearing ratio, the Group may issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt financing
or sell assets to reduce debt.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

39.

38. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 38. EXEBEE (&)
Capital management (continued) BEARAEE(E)
The gearing ratio at 31 December 2021 and 2020 was 0.03% and RZEZ—FR-_ZT_FTF+=A
0.03% respectively, calculated as follows: == EI Zéfﬁiéff Lt E5 BIl£0.08% K&
0.08% ' FTEMT :
2021 2020
—E—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T R ARETIT
Total debts B BEE
— Loan from government authority — BT R E 5k 400 400
400 400
Shareholders’ equity NE R = 1,453,749 1,345,482
Gearing ratio BARA G E 0.03% 0.03%
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 39. B EE
Financial risk management B 3 L B i 2

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks,
including credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, currency risk,
price risk and fair values risk. The Group does not hold or issue
derivative financial instruments either for hedging or for trading
purposes. These risks are managed by the Group’s financial
management policies and practices as described below to minimise
potential effects on the Group’s financial performance.

()

Credit risk

The Group’s principal financial assets are cash and bank
balances, trade and other receivables, contract assets,
financial assets measured at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss. The Group’s credit
risk is primarily attributable to its trade and other receivables.
The Group allows an average credit period of 180 days to
its trade customers. The amounts presented in the balance
sheets are net of loss allowance.

The Group does not have any significant credit risk exposure
to any single trade counterparty or any Group of trade
counterparties having similar characteristics. It has policies
in place to ensure that sales are made to customers with an
appropriate credit history.

AEENEHEEARZESZEMBR
ﬁ ! E*ﬁﬁ:fﬁ A N um@)éiﬂ& *'J
% [ b if’ﬁ%J—LM - BERERERAAE

R AREVEFAXBEITITESR
TAEHHIEERSE - AT XA -
ZERRARNERNTHERRRRE
BRIMAERE - UHRERIEEH AL BB
XEMEETE -

@@ EERE
ﬂKEIZIgi\ﬁﬂﬁEﬁﬁi&fﬁ
1T B REMEBWEIE - &
%ﬁéﬁ Mﬁﬁﬁﬁkjﬁuf?amimﬂﬁ
EURZEAREFABRNEHE
E-AEEZEERREERBE
FEULE 5 BR 3 I H fth JR U GRIE o AN
SEREESEFPREZTFHEER
Hi2180H - BEEBERAMIIH
TREEMBREERRE -

ZRER B0 R A (T A R U R B —

EJZ*%HTE’?%?&%‘%T??%%%K%E
o REE S B E B RERR A

f% '“‘ SERBENEPELHEE -

EMEIE R BB GARAR
—T-—GEH

— =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

The expected loss rates are based on the historical monthly
outstanding balances of trade receivables of 36 months
before 31 December 2021 and the corresponding historical
credit losses experienced within this period. The historical
loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and forwardlooking
information on macroeconomic factors affecting the ability of
the customers to settle the receivables.

As at 31 December 2021, 1.8% (2020: 1.9%) and 6.8%
(2020: 7.3%) of the total trade receivables was due from the
Group’s largest customer and the five largest customers,
respectively.

The carrying amount of the trade and other receivables,
contract assets, financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss, and cash and bank balances and financial assets
included in the consolidated balance sheet represents the
Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to the
Group’s financial assets.

The Group’s management performs periodic credit
evaluations/reviews of its customers and ensure that sales
are made to customers with an appropriate credit history.
The Group places deposits with major banks in Mainland
China, to limit the amount of credit exposure to any financial
institution. Trade and bills receivables, contract assets and
other receivables are subject to the expected credit loss
model. To lower the Group’s exposure to credit risk, the
Group may request deposits from certain of their customers
before delivery of goods.
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(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(@)

Credit risk (continued)

The Group has trade receivables from sales of products
that are subject to HKFRS 9’s new expected credit loss
model. The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a lifetime
expected loss allowance for all trade receivables from initial
recognition. To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been grouped based on shared credit
risk characteristics and the ageing days. The expected
loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales and
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced.
The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the receivables.
On that basis, the loss allowance as at 31 December 2021
and 31 December 2020 was determined as follows for trade
receivables:

39.

MR EE (&)
MR EE ()
@ FEERRGE)
Kﬁlﬁm_?%“ B AR
FORM R EEBBERANE
mIHERKE ZRR - AEERA
ERMBREERFIRETTE
ARERMEEERE RO HER
- RATEEWE ZRTEHEEE
FERANTEHERE - RETEEH
EEEE BUREFERREEEE
EEERRRE MR 7 1R - TAH
EERENHE N RIE R RAH
FARLBENEEAEEEEE - B
&Fﬁaﬂ’ﬁﬂjuﬂﬁwﬂ%wagﬁ
,%SECFEHSZM RN EBRERE
HIJEFIEéSH UL EZE
E"_;_*iJr A=+—RKkZ=
?_$¢+ A=+—HArEKRE

R EBEREEENT
Over
Within 6 months to Over 18
6 months 18 months months Total
HBiB61E A
618 A LA 2188 HBiBE18EA st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFTIT AREFTT ARETT
At 31 December 2021 R=B=—F
+=-—HA=+—H
Gross carrying amount RE®E 248,836 39,798 29,347 317,981
Expected loss rate TEEASE R 0-30% 30-60%  60-100%
Loss allowance SR 53,813 8,515 25,401 87,729
At 31 December 2020 R-ZE-FF
+=—A=+—8H
Gross carrying amount REAE 195,606 49,898 36,242 281,746
Expected loss rate TE A 1 = 0-15% 30-60% 60-100%
Loss allowance 1R 29,259 17,417 28,696 75,372

Impairment losses on trade receivables are presented as
net impairment losses within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited
against the same line item.

FEME 5 BR R ER B B 1 R A & i
MAZRI ARERBERFE - HRIK
] 5% /i 2 M35 1 & B B AR —
BH -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(b)

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses and the raising of loans to
cover expected cash demands, subject to approval by the
Company’s board of directors when the borrowings exceed
certain predetermined levels of authority. The Group’s
policy is to regularly monitor its liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, to ensure that it
maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the balance sheet date of the Group’s financial
liabilities, which are based on contractual undiscounted
cash flows (including interest payments computed using
contractual rates, or if floating, based on rates current at the
balance sheet date) and the earliest date the Group and the
Company can be required to pay.
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B REBREE (&)
BERBEE(H)

(b)

REBEE R
AEEETENEEERATAS
BENREEE  EREEHRERS
BRLEBRENUARNIENE S
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Br RS R BT RE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Financial risk management (continued)
(b) Liquidity risk (continued)

39. BB EREE (&)

M EREE ()
b) REBEZER(E)

Total Within More than More than

contractual 1year  1yearbut 2 yearsbut
Carrying undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

HEER ¢ 3 -FKE MERE
FEE BENEH REX WER LR nE#
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR ARMTR ARETRT ARBTR ARETR ARET:R

2021 —B--F

Trade payables HNEGE S 51,335 51,335 51,335 - - -
Contract liabilities alaE 15,222 15,222 15,222 - - -
Other payables and acoruals ~ EHEMFUAREATER 404,889 404,889 404,889 - - -
Income tax payable [ERFTEH 32,446 32,446 32,446 - - -
Other tax payables At MR 33,783 33,783 33,783 - - -
Dividend payable ERRE 32,136 32,136 32,136 - - -
Loan from government authority BRfF##ER 400 400 400 - - -
570,211 570,211 570,211 - - -

Total Within More than More than

contractual 1 year 1yearbut 2 years but
Carrying  undiscounted oron less than less than More than
amount cash flow demand 2 years 5 years 5 years

HEESiE —FR5 —FRE MERE
FEE Rened REX MER RER nEk
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETT ARETR  ARETR ARETRT  AR%TR

2020 ZEC%fF

Trade payables ERB SR 42,628 42,628 42,628 - - -
Contract liabilities algfE 7,564 7,564 7,564 - - -
Other payables and accruals ~ E BN FERE B 287,842 287,842 287,842 - - -
Income tax payable FERIFTSH 26,642 26,642 26,642 - - -
Other tax payables At ENFE 25,892 25,892 25,892 - - -
Dividend payable EMRE 23,478 23,478 23,478 - - -
Loan from government authority Eif#E8 &3 400 400 400 - - -
414,446 414,446 414,446 - - -

TG B REA(CEERNERAR]
T FFR
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 39. MIBEREE(E)
Financial risk management (continued) B EE ()
() Interest rate risk ) FE@b
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from its AEBHFERRERFEZRBIETR
borrowings from the bank and the Huinan County Finance 1EEFR I BRI E K o RZENF =
Bureau. Borrowings at variable rates expose the Group to {EH E’Jfﬁm%\$’§ EEHRERE
cash flow interest rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as MERR - ZEREEENASE
monitored by the management is set out below: %'J%*ERR%ZWZZDT :
2021 2020
—B-—F —E-THF
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
BERAE ERRF =
RMB’000 RMB’000
% ARBETT % ARETTT
Variable rate borrowings ~ J%E(EE
Loan from government USR8
authority B 1.8 400 1.8 400

The interest rate and terms of repayment of the Group’s
borrowings are disclosed in Note 31 to the financial
statements.

At 31 December 2021, it was estimated that a general
increase or decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would decrease or
increase the Group’s profit after taxation and retained profits
by RMB4,000 (2020: RMB4,000).

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined assuming
that the change in interest rates had occurred at the balance
sheet date and had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for the borrowings in existence at that date.
The 100 basis point increase or decrease represents the
management’s assessment of a reasonably possible change
in interest rates over the period until the next annual balance
sheet date.

Currency risk

The Group mainly operated in the PRC with most of the
transactions settled in Renminbi and did not have significant
exposure to risk resulting from changes in foreign currency
exchange rates.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)

(e) Price risk
The Group is not exposed to any equity price risk or
commodity price risk.

()  Fair value estimation

(i)

Fair value hierarchy

This section explains the judgements and estimates
made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognised and measured at
fair value in the financial statements. To provide an
indication about the reliability of the inputs used in
determining fair value, the Group has classified its

39. MIBEREE(E)
B mEbEE ()
) ERREk

AE BB E I EAREERER

SR mERERE o

) AREMEE
() RBAEER

A E 5 AR B E R B A Sk R

BARBEERR

FFEMD A

T A/ QA EH R
ite REHEBEEAREMA
ﬁk%ﬁ(%ﬁﬁﬁ—ﬁ*ﬁf?ah
AEERBEEHEAKE

financial instruments into the three levels prescribed BTAESRB={EER -
under the accounting standards.
2021 2020
—E—F —E-THF
Note RMB’000 RMB’000
HtaE AR%T T ARBT T
Level 3 Recurring fair value FBREEM
measurements ARERTE
Financial assets at fair value BEARERT AEEN
through profit or loss SREE 23 176,533 60,417
There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for REA > BEUHRRERE

recurring fair value measurements during the year. For
transfers in and out of level 3 measurements see (ii)
below.

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end
of the year.

E-R_ERzEBES
B-EFE-_EAAEBALE

B &R 3 (i) ©

AEERRBNFERERD

)L@Fﬁ&
S o

RENEAREH

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH

—=—

— =
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)
Fair value estimation (continued)

(f

(i)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

Level 1: The fair value of financial instruments traded
in active markets is based on quoted market prices at
the end of the year. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the current bid
price. These instruments are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that
are not traded in an active market (for example, over-
the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable
market data and rely as little as possible on entity-
specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair
value an instrument are observable, the instrument is
included in level 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not
based on observable market data, the instrument is
included in level 3. This is the case for unlisted equity
securities.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UAREZT)

39. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

Financial risk management (continued)
()  Fair value estimation (continued)

(i)

(i)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (level 3)

The following table presents the changes in level 3
instruments for the year:

39.

MR EREE(E)

MHEREE(E)
) DREMEGE

(i)

FIFFEEZE T i B A B15
FERRE(EZER)
TR2INFAE=ZBRT

2021 2020

—E—F —E-THF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBT T

Opening balance FEER 60,417 683,483

Acquisitions g 240,000 390,000

Disposals HE (125,417) (1,013,483)
Net gain on financial assets at fair value 2 AREFTABZERE M

through profit or loss BEN TG 1,533 417

Closing balance FREER 176,533 60,417

The above instruments included in level 3 represent
wealth management products, both principal and non-
principal guaranteed, issued by financial institution in
the PRC which was classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit of loss.

There were no transfers between levels 1, 2 and 3
during the year.

The key unobservable input is the expected annualised
return rate of the financial product, ranging from 0.75%
to 4.0% per annum (2020: 1.2% to 3.3% per annum),
which is determined by the financial institution.

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities carried
at other than fair value

All financial instruments measured at other than fair
value are carried at cost or amortised cost that were
not materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2021 and 2020.

(i)

EXE=ZBEMERNTA
RTE S REERTHEM
Em BREANRIFERA -
ZETEDBREASRER
ANBHNEREE -

RER E—BH £
AR E=BRELEER -

FETAEERGABIE LS
BB E M I B E TR
FllEER  BFA0.75%
FA0%(ZE_ZTF : FF
1.2%%3.3%) °

WHZER BRI E FE
ERBENALE
RZEZ—FER=ZZF=FF
+=—A=+—8 " a3
BAREFENERTEY
HEENAETEEAER
B9 K A ok 8 SH K AS 1 BR o

EMEEEREACEERNHERAH
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

40. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 40. eiEERSRIBERERE

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY DTHBE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets and financial AEERZZE-_—FR-_ZT-_FTF+=
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2021 and 2020 may be A=+—HFERNeHEEREHE
categorised as follows: B BREERME T Pl T oA 48 -
2021 2020
—E—F —E-THF
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBFR AR¥ETT

Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at fair value through BARBETABENSHEE

profit or loss 176,533 60,417
Financial assets measured at amortised cost A SEK AT ERN S RIEE 806,918 805,020
Loan and receivables B R GRIE

(including cash and bank balances) (BfER € MIRTTER) 596,603 535,969
Financial liabilities SRIBE
Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost R AN ERN S RIAE 618,564 459,021
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)

(UARBZETR)
41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES 4. KEEKME A A
For the year ended 31 December 2021 E-E--F+ZA=+—HL#F
E
() FEMEEEREEZRLCHEARAR (‘KELQT) @ EMEEEREZERIEHEHBRLD
A &EAT])
On 1 October 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity RZZE=_—F+A—H ' ~AEEU
interest in HMEEE REERCHBR AR ((KHEHQR)) KB AR ¥500,0007T 88 S HE
at a consideration of RMB500,000. The objective of the ErEREEMCHEGR AR ([&H
acquisition is to expand the sales market of the Group. This AAE)RI100% Mk - WEESIEE
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition FEEANEEREEMS - ZWE
method. During the reporting period, the consideration of FIHERAWEEAR - RkEH
RMB500,000 has been included as other payable in the - RE AR 500,000 E1EA
statement of financial position. H A SRIBGT AR ISARR T ©
Consideration transferred FrEEEE
RMB’000
AR¥T
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 500
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of RUEEEIE B BRI S & B K P T
acquisition were as follows: REEWNT :
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Property, plant and equipment M - WE MR 64
Intangible assets EREE 32
Inventories FE 18,112
Trade and other receivables B 5 & E At FEUGRIE 13,298
Bank balances and cash RITER NS 1,690
Trade payables FETARER (3,512)
Other payables and accruals H At T 5RIA X FE R T 5RIE (34,375)
(4,691)

EMEEEREEACEERBERAT 119
—T——FFIR



120

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued)

(@)

EMEEEREEREHARQIIA(EHELF")

(continued)

41. WEME AR (&)
BE-_Z-—F+-A=+—HLHF
E (&)
@ EMEEEREZERKHBERA
A([&ZHEHLT ) (&)

Gooawill arising on acquisition Y iE B E L B E
RMB’000
AR¥ET T
Consideration transferred Frig sz (8 500
Less: recognised amount of identifiable B ERERE T E R R B EFE
net assets acquired (4,691)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WEESTHE £ MR 5,191
Net cash inflow arising on acquisition W B B IE A I S SEEE
RMB’000
ARMT T
Consideration paid in cash BERESRE -
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances B FTBEERIR & MR SFE MR
acquired 1,690
1,690

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Profit for the year includes RMB448,000 profit attributable to
the additional business generated by #% §8 /A &]. Revenue for
the reporting period includes RMB6,694,000 generated from
S NG

Had the acquisition of £X 572 & been completed in 1 January
2021, revenue for the year of the Group would have been
RMB651,411,000, and profit for the year would have been
RMB137,112,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
the date of acquisition, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 41. WEEHB AT (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) E-E_—F+ZA=1+—HL#F
E (&)
(b) BEREBEBRAR (YBERE”) b) BEREBHBRATA(EEER
fva.
5 1)
On 1 May 2021, the Group acquired 100% equity interest R-ZT-—FRAA—H  AEEN
n BREEEEEAR AT (VBM KB at a consideration KR E AR 980,000t Wi B &
of RMB980,000. The objective of the acquisition is to EREBEERAR(EBEREN
explore the uncharted market for the Group’s product. This 100% 4 - WIEEIBEEAARE
acquisition has been accounted for using the acquisition BEMMEEEMS - ZKESE
method. During the reporting period, the consideration of BERAWEEARR - RekSHIR -
RMB980,000 has been settled in cash. REARB80,000TE IR £ E
o
Consideration transferred FrEEZECE
RMB’000
AR¥T
Cash consideration paid BENRERE 980
Assets acquired and liabilities recognised at the date of U BE B 18 H HR P UK B & B 2 P i
acquisition were as follows: REEWT -
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Other receivables H {th pE W sk I8 44
Bank balances and cash RITHEBR MRS 88
Other payables and accruals H At T 5RI8 X FE AT 5RIR (215)
(83)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

(b)

41. ACQUISITION OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) M. WEEHE AR (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2021 (continued) BE-_Z-_—F+-A=+—HL#HE
E (&)
BEREBEEGRAR (YESEKRHEE”) (continued) b) BEREBEERAR(EEE
gl (&)
Gooawill arising on acquisition W IEEEHE LR
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Consideration transferred FrEsE R E 980
Less: recognised amount of identifiable net W BRI FTUR S AT kR & R E
assets acquired (83)
Goodwill arising on acquisition WHE S THE £ R 1,063
Net cash outflow arising on acquisition W B SETE B £ HY B 2 7 M 5E
RMB’000
AR®T T
Consideration paid in cash BEfRERE (980)
Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances B TR IR IR S B
acquired 88
892)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Profit for the year includes RMB4,858,000 profit attributable to
the additional business generated by /& f & &€ . Revenue for
the reporting period includes RMB111,096,000 generated from
BrERE.

Had the acquisition of /& £ &E been completed in 1 January
2021, revenue for the year of the Group would have been
RMB701,798,000, and profit for the year would have been
RMB142,884,000. The pro forma information is for illustrative
purposes only and is not necessarily an indication of revenue
and results of operations of the Group that actually would
have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on
the date of acquisition, nor is it intended to be a projection of
future results.

For the purpose of statement of cash flow, the net cash
inflow arising on the acquisition of subsidiaries amounting to
RMB798,000.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

MIE R MR

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

42. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING

43.

FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities arising
from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows from
financing activities.

42. EEFHELENEBEHR

TR AEEREEDEENRESR
BH5 BRASAIRSED - BE
APEAMNABRSKRARERARS
MERTFOELARETHREERENST
TREIRARERE °

Loan from
government Dividend

authority payable Total
BUN#EI & EARE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREBTT ARBT T

(Note 31)

(B15£31)
At 1 January 2020 R-—E-_TF—H—H 2,350 19,746 22,096
Repayment of loan EEER (2,043) = (2,043)
Interest expenses FEZ W 93 - 93
Financing cash outflows BB IR SR - (15,877) (15,877)
Dividend declared BBk - 19,609 19,609

At 31 December 2020 "
+=—A=+—H 400 23,478 23,878
At 1 January 2021 RZE=——F—H—H 400 23,478 23,878
Financing cash outflows BEIR SR - (26,358) (26,358)
Dividend declared RSN - 35,016 35,016
At 31 December 2021 RZTZ—F

+=—A=+—H 400 32,136 32,536

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue
by the Board of Directors on 29 April 2022.

43. ERIKERE
FreR_E-_—_FNA=-t+HABEH]
AR B I S TR -
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
IFUBRE

(Expressed in Renminbi)
(UARBZT)

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group ~ AEEfFEEEE T K EXM SRR 2 BERE
for the last five financial years, as extracted from the published audited — BAEG[E 2 45 - EEMABERESH 0T -
financial statements is set out below.

OPERATING RESULTS REXE

Year ended 31 December

BZ+-A=t-HLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
—E--F —Z-FF —E-NF —E-)N\F —Z—tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETL ARETL ARETTL ARETTL
Revenue WA 705,456 622,250 645,885 647,672 645,303
Cost of sales HEMA (125,451) (91,512) (107,533) (115,554) (114,250)
Gross profit =7 \ 580,005 530,738 538,352 532,118 531,053
Other income and net gains AR zm
or losses BT 51,616 48,370 37,970 58,188 24,008
Distribution and selling costs AERHERSY (360,717) (258,808) (336,217) (375,480) (335,128)
Administrative expenses G (93,287) (169,546) (64,691) (28,450) (47,165)
Profit from operations Sl 177,617 150,754 175,414 186,376 172,768
Finance costs BARKA (344) (713) (120) (53) -
Profit before income tax BRETS R A& A 177,273 150,041 175,294 186,323 172,768
Income tax expense FERRAE (33,990) (23,483) (30,568) (25,107) (28,366)
Profit for the year attributable to FARDAIEEA
owners of the Company iyl 143,283 126,558 144,726 161,216 144,402
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EERERE
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
“E--F e e -3 —T-NF —T-)N\F —T—+tF
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETTT
Bearer biological assets N EMEE 15,080 14,905 13,402 11,745 11,440
Property, plant and equipment ME - BENERE 198,594 169,969 145,242 156,591 166,133
Prepaid lease payments BEfNtiEe - - - 15,068 15,520
Right-of-use assets FREAE 36,619 37,408 38,340 = =
Construction in progress FEEIR 147,857 124,305 74,061 67,588 44127
Intangible assets EVEE 32 - - - -
Goodwill - S 6,254
Financial assets measured at IABER AT ER)
amortised cost FRAE 776,494 648,519 - - -
Deferred tax assets ELRBAE 1,510 1510 1,510 944 316
Current assets MEBEE 889,873 807,887 1,398,922 1,302,905 1,000,536
Current liabilities MEEE (571,794) (415,435) (387,872) (375,484) (200,083)
Non-current liabilities FRBER (46,770) (43,586) (45,072) (46,332) (26,962)
Net assets BEFE 1,453,749 1,345,482 1,238,533 1,133,025 1,011,027
Share capital B 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025 56,025
Reserves & 1,397,724 1,289,457 1,182,508 1,077,000 955,002
Total equity ReniEE 1,453,749 1,345,482 1,238,533 1,133,025 1,011,027
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